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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2015 2014 2013

—Z-1f —FE —F—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

Revenue gz 2,198,590 70,856 47,979

Profit attributable to owners ISYNCIIREES

of the parent JE b 1 41,820 27,266 397,242

Basic and diluted earnings ERERALEERT HKO0.76 cent HKO0.59 cent HK8.57 cents

per share Al AL P

Total assets BERE 6,417,546 8,680,613 2,348,352

Total liabilities afEeE (3,085,888) (5,318,852) (118,040)

Non-controlling interests IR A (594,124) (578,390) (5,082)
Net assets (net of BEFE (K

non-controlling interests) FEE IR RS ) 2,737,534 2,783,371 2,225,230

Revenue (HK$' million)

W (B8#BT)
2,199
>
48 71
2013 2014 2015

Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK¢)

BREXRBERR (BAL)

8.57

0.59 0.76

=

2013 2014 2015

Net assets (net of non-controlling interests)
(HK$’ million)
EEFE (NREERER) (BEET)
2,783 2,738

>
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2013 2014 2015
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2015.

OVERALL REVIEW

In 2015, the Group recorded turnover of HK$2,198,590,000
(2014: HK$70,856,000) and gross profit of HK$182,991,000
(2014: HK$5,823,000). The substantial rise in turnover and
gross profit was because the property development and
investment business segment started to sell and lease out
properties during the year and thus turnover was recorded.
The Group also recorded a one-off net gain on deemed
disposal of associates of HK$433,380,000 (2014: HK$679,000).
Nevertheless, a provision for impairment of an available-for-sale
investment of HK$311,137,000 (2014: Nil) was made due to
the significant fall in stock market. During the year ended 31
December 2015, the profit before tax was HK$191,314,000
(2014: HK$6,438,000). After deducting income tax
expense, the profit for the year was HK$83,460,000 (2014:
HK$5,947,000) of which the profit attributable to owners of
the parent was HK$41,820,000 (2014: HK$27,266,000).

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK¢0.76 (2014:
HK¢0.59). The return on equity, calculated on the basis of
profit attributable to owners of the parent as a percentage of
equity attributable to owners of the parent, was 2% (2014:
1%).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRBEUREBENRR DN
BUSINESS REVIEW

Property development and investment business

During the year, the property development and investment
business acquired by the Group on 30 December 2014
became one of the Group's principal activities. Currently, two
projects are in progress. One is located at the Southern side
of Zhongshan Road of the Shahekou District of Dalian City
(“Dalian Project”), and another is situated in a newly developed
residential area with communal facilities in the Liangjiangxin
District of Chongqging (“Chongging Project”).

In 2015, the overall keynote of the regulation and control
policy of the Chinese government for the real estate industry
insisted on promoting consumption and destocking, with
frequent launch of supply and demand easing policies to push
ahead with the steady rally of market volumes and prices.
Despite the steady release of demand volume in the second
and third tier cities as stimulated by such policies, the impetus
was inadequate to push up the house prices due to the high
inventory of real estate. Remarkably increasing prices and
volumes have not yet turned up in the market of Dalian City
where the Dalian Project is located.

Dalian Project comprises four parcels of land having a total
site area of approximately 46,938 square meter (excluding
communal site area). A large scale development project, the
International Square, is being constructed comprising offices,
retail shops and residential buildings. The total saleable area
of Dalian Project upon completion is approximately 350,488
square meter. Dalian Project is currently in the normal
development and construction phase, and pre-sale of certain
residential and office space of the International Square has
commenced since June 2013. Saleable area of 142,311 square
meter was completed in 2015, of which 86,960 square meter
was sold, 18,299 square meter was leased out and included
in investment properties, and the remaining was included in
completed properties held for sale. As at 31 December 2015,
the total saleable area of properties under development was
approximately 208,177 square meter.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Chongqing Project comprises twelve parcels of land with a
total site area of approximately 375,252 square meter and is
currently in the early development phase.

As at 31 December 2015, the properties under development
and completed properties held for sale amounted to
HK$4,070,648,000 (2014: HK$4,950,000,000) and investment
properties amounted to HK$373,425,000 (2014: Nil). The
customer deposits, which represent the proceeds of the
pre-sale of properties, decreased from HK$1,757,152,000 as
at 31 December 2014 to HK$248,310,000 as at 31 December
2015, because sales was recognised after the completion of
properties during the year. Dalian Project recorded turnover of
HK$2,147,344,000 and gross profit of HK$180,303,000 for
the year. The property development and investment business
segment contributed profit of HK$35,065,000 for the year.

Knitting and textile business

In 2015, the operating condition of /T B 5 & 4 & 4§ &
X B R A @ (“Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu”), a 51%-owned
subsidiary, was unfavourable. It was mainly attributable to
the weak condition of the knitting and textile industry as a
result of the influence of macro economy. Its turnover was
HK$43,602,000, a drop of 18% from HK$53,413,000 in 2014.
The sales volume was approximately 2,571 tonnes (2014:
2,784 tonnes). The gross profit rate was 6% (2014: 10%).
A provision for impairment of items of property, plant and
equipment of HK$6,924,000 (2014: Nil) was made due to a
reduced future cash inflow estimated. Moreover, a provision
for impairment of trade and bills receivables of HK$6,871,000
(2014: HK$4,371,000) was made. The knitting and textile
business segment recorded loss of HK$14,056,000 (2014:
HK$43,509,000) for the year.

FTEBREUAREEENWR DM
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ITEREUREEENRWR DM
Trading business

During the year, the Group continued to engage in the trading
of raw materials and auxiliary materials such as electronic
components, electronic products and metal materials in
Zhejiang Province. The turnover and gross profit rate for the
year was HK$7,644,000 (2014: HK$17,443,000) and 3% (2014
2%) respectively. The trading business segment recorded profit
of HK$175,000 (2014: HK$2,987,000) for the year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Joint venture and associates

During the year, the Group's equity interests in two associates,
AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited ("AVIC Joy"”), a listed company
in Hong Kong, and L/BEMIMEIRIERGOBERAR (" LF
BS)M"), were diluted and the Group no longer had significant
influence over them. As such, the Group's investments in
these two companies were reclassified from investments in
associates to available-for-sale investments, and the Group
discontinued to apply the equity method to share the results
and other comprehensive income of these two companies. This
reclassification was accounted for as disposals of the entire
interests in AVIC Joy and _E/8EH, and re-acquisitions of the
retained interests at their fair values. As a result, a net gain on
deemed disposal of associates of HK$433,380,000 (2014: Nil)
was recorded.

In addition, the Group recorded share of losses of the joint
venture and associates in an aggregate of HK$68,615,000
(2014: HK$50,204,000) for the year.

Impairment of an available-for-sale investment

Subsequent to the Group's investment in AVIC Joy
being reclassified from investment in an associate to an
available-for-sale investment during the year, there was
a significant fall in the stock market in Hong Kong. As a
result, an impairment of an available-for-sale investment of
HK$311,137,000 (2014: Nil) was recorded.
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Convertible bonds

The Group held convertible bonds issued by Peace Map Holding
Limited (“PMH") and AVIC Joy, respectively, both are listed
companies in Hong Kong. These convertible bonds are hybrid
instruments that include non-derivative host contracts and
the embedded derivatives. The non-derivative host contracts,
representing the bond components, have been designated
as available-for-sale investments. The embedded derivatives,
representing the conversion options, have been designated as
derivative financial instruments.

During the year, the Group converted certain convertible bonds
issued by PMH (“PMH Convertible Bonds”) with a principal
amount of HK$66,000,000 into 264,000,000 shares of PMH
at the conversion price of HK$0.25 per share. The number of
shares of PMH held by the Group increased from 497,900,000
shares as at 31 December 2014 to 761,900,000 shares as at
31 December 2015, which was included in equity investment
at fair value through profit or loss. A loss on derecognition
of HK$3,760,000 was calculated which was the difference
between the fair value of the shares of PMH received and
that of PMH Convertible Bonds converted. At the same
time, the corresponding fair value gain of HK$8,573,000
previously recorded in the statement of other comprehensive
income was released from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve. As a result, a net gain on derecognition of
an available-for-sale investment of HK$4,813,000 in respect
of PMH Convertible Bonds was recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year.

R IR E 3
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FTEBREUAREEENWR DM

Furthermore, during the year, the maturity date of the
convertible bond issued by AVIC Joy (“AVIC Joy Convertible
Bond”) was extended from 6 March 2015 to 6 March 2018 as
agreed by the Group and AVIC Joy, and the conversion rate
was changed from HK$0.235 per share to HK$0.23 per share.
A gain on derecognition of the original AVIC Joy Convertible
Bond of HK$3,984,000 was calculated which was the difference
between the fair values of the original and the new AVIC
Joy Convertible Bonds. At the same time, the corresponding
fair value gain of HK$10,518,000 previously recorded in the
statement of other comprehensive income was released from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve. As a result,
a net gain on derecognition of an available-for-sale investment
of HK$14,502,000 in respect of AVIC Joy Convertible Bond was
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year.

The Group's derivative financial instruments are managed and
their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Any fair
value gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Fair values
are stated based on valuations performed by independent
professionally qualified valuers, which are mainly influenced by
the prices of the underlying securities and the time value of the
derivative financial instruments.

The Group's portfolio of derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2015 consisted of the derivatives at fair values of
HK$90,444,000 (2014: HK$125,373,000) and HK$29,452,000
(2014: HK$25,497,000) embedded in PMH Convertible Bonds
and AVIC Joy Convertible Bond, respectively. During the year, a
fair value gain of HK$28,146,000 (2014: loss of HK$8,565,000)
was recognised in respect of the embedded derivatives, which
was mainly due to the rise in the share price of PMH.
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HERIRE 2 FFH14,502,00087T ©

AREBZMTESMTADNEAFEEEEE

HRBIPR A FEEEFE - T2 FENE
FERHNBRPER - AFENRBEBELE
EABERMEMETZHERTE HEEIZ

THEEEFERUANZITESR T ENEREE
Fiss & -

RZE—RAF+-A=+—RHZ{TEEHmITA
HEBEXTBEERATBRES K FER/IERA]
BBRESFTFRAZITETR R FED A
90,444,000/ ;L (ZZ — ¥4 : 125,373,000
# JU) 29,452,000 L (= T — I &
25,497,00087C) - £ - EHERITESHIT A
2 A F{EFE28,146,0008 7T (—ZT — PO ¢
[E5188,565,000/ 7T) + £ Z RN K TEIERH
BR{E EF o



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

hEMZETXERER (88) BRAF
Annual Report 2015 —Z— R FFR

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TEREUAREEEAWE DM

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had current
assets of HK$5,127,503,000 (2014: HK$7,810,267,000),
including cash and bank balances and time deposits in an
aggregate of HK$473,689,000 (2014: HK$1,249,324,000).
The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2015 were
HK$763,972,000 (2014: HK$4,176,488,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's equity attributable
to owners of the parent amounted to HK$2,737,534,000
(2014: HK$2,783,371,000), comprising issued capital of
HK$551,959,000 (2014: HK$551,959,000) and reserves
of HK$2,185,575,000 (2014: HK$2,231,412,000). The
Group's interest-bearing debts, including loans from fellow
subsidiaries of HK$1,864,671,000 (2014: HK2,361,837,000),
interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$37,964,000
(2014: HK$704,686,000) and loans from an intermediate
holding company of HK$509,581,000 (2014: Nil) are mainly
denominated in Renminbi and arranged on a fixed rate basis.
The Group's gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of the
interest-bearing debts as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the parent plus the interest-bearing debts, was 47 %
(2014: 52%)).

The Group's banking facilities are mainly utilised for general
working capital requirements.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRBEUREBENRR DN
CHARGES ON THE GROUP'S ASSETS

Details of the charges on the Group's assets are set out in note
34(a) to the financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's foreign currency exposures primarily arise from
certain sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units' functional currency. In view of the fact
that the Group tries to match its assets and liabilities with the
same currency, the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk is
minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions described elsewhere in this annual
report, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the significant contingent liabilities of the Group are
set out in note 43 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, there were 156 (2014: 179)
employees in the Group. The employee wages and
salaries, excluding directors' remuneration, amounted to
HK$30,269,000 (2014: HK$17,096,000) for the year ended
31 December 2015. The Group recognises the importance of
good relationship with employees. The Directors believe that
the working environment and benefits offered to employees
have contributed to building good staff relations and retention.
The Group's remuneration policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and market conditions
and are reviewed regularly. The Group also provides other
staff benefits including medical and life insurance, and grants
discretionary incentive bonuses and share options to eligible
staff based on their performance and contributions to the
Group.
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OUTLOOK

In 2016, the launch of favorable real estate policies in China
has effectively promoted the persistent rally of property
sales. The overall inventory pressure in the market has been
alleviated. The first tier cities and a part of the hot-spot second
tier cities have experienced good economic development with
persistent population influx. They have managed to make room
for demand leading to the decrease of the inventory pressure
and the impetus for increasing house prices. Some second tier
cities and the majority of the third and fourth tier cities are still
confronted with the greater pressure of destocking. Various
approaches are required to help destocking. On the whole,
the real estate market will keep on developing well with house
prices remaining stable or on the gentle rise.

In 2016, the Group will endeavor to closely adhere to
the market trend, expedite the development, sales and
the destocking of existing projects, and on the basis of
consolidating the advantages of having entered into the cities,
will seek to seize the opportunities of entering into the first
and second tier core cities so as to further expand the market
layout of the Group.

Apart from being closely concerned with the public bid
invitation, auction and listing markets, attention is also paid
to the possibilities of merger and acquisition. We believe that
more opportunities will emerge with the industry differentiation
and integration.
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TRBEUREBENRR DN
APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Wu Guangquan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Guangquan, aged 53, has been an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company since March 2010. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wu holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and
is a senior accountant. He is the president of AVIC International
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”) and a director of
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC International
(HK) Group”), both of which are substantial shareholders of
the Company. Mr. Wu has extensive experience in finance,
administration and management. He is also an executive
director and the Chairman of AVIC International Holdings
Limited (“AVIC IHL"), a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and was a
director and chairman of Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd.
("Tianma"), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Pan Linwu, aged 51, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since February 2008 and a Deputy Chairman of
the Company since January 2013. He holds a Master’s degree
in Aeronautical Engineering, a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering
and a Postgraduate Diploma in Financial Accounting, and is a
professional senior accountant. Mr. Pan served at the Ministry
of Aviation Industry and the audit department of the Ministry
of Aero-Space Industry. In 1993, he was transferred to AVIC
International and served as deputy director and director of the
audit division. Mr. Pan is an executive vice president and the
chief financial officer of AVIC International, and a director of
AVIC International (HK) Group and Tacko International Limited
("Tacko"”), which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Pan has
many years' experience in financial management, supervision
and audit, and has substantial experience in the area of
finance, capital operation and risk management. Mr. Pan is also
an executive director of AVIC IHL.
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Mr. Lai Weixuan, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 23 June 2015. He is a senior
accountant, holding doctorate degree in Management of Tongji
University and an EMBA of Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University. Mr. Lai is now the Chief Executive Officer of
AVIC International and a director of AVIC International (HK)
Group. Mr. Lai joined AVIC International Shenzhen Company
Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen”, a wholly owned subsidiary of AVIC
International) in 1983. He previously served as the deputy
general manager of AVIC Shenzhen, the Chairman of Fiyta
Holdings Limited (“Fiyta”), the deputy chairman of Tianma and
the chairman of Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd. (“Rainbow
Department Store”). Fiyta and Rainbow Department Store are
companies listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai has rich
experience in finance and operation management, and once
acted as an executive director of AVIC IHL from 2004 to 2012
and was appointed as an executive director again in 2014.

Mr. Xu Hongge, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
23 June 2015. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in architecture
from Southeast University. He also completed the Post-EMBA
program from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in
2010. Mr. Xu previously served as an executive vice president
of China Vanke Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He has over 22 years
of experience in property development industry.

Mr. Xiao Nan, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 23 June 2015. He holds a
Bachelor’'s degree in architecture from Tianjin University.
He also completed the EMBA program from Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business in 2010. He previously served as
a vice president of China Vanke Co., Ltd. Mr. Xiao has over 29
years of experience in property development industry.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, Jr, aged 68, was appointed as a
Non-Executive Director of the Company on 23 June 2015. He
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Architectural Studies and
a Bachelor of Architecture degree from the University of Hong
Kong in November 1970 and November 1972, respectively.
He has been an Authorised Person (List of Architects) and
a Registered Architect since July 1976 and January 1991,
respectively. He was also admitted as a Fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Architects since August 2001. He is currently
an Executive Director of Cheung Kong Property Holdings
Limited (“CKPH"), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chow joined the Hutchison Group in July 1995 and was
the Group Managing Director of the property and hotels
divisions of the Hutchison Group since 2000. He is now the
Group Managing Director of Hutchison Property Group Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKPH. He has over 40 years of
experience in project management and architectural design for
various developments, including hotel, residential, commercial,
industrial and school projects in Hong Kong, the Mainland
China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, Jp, 58S, aged 72, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 1999. He is also a member and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chu received his Master of Business Administration degree
from Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering
and Management at Northeastern University and was awarded
an honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China
Investments Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International Limited
and Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited, all being listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 61, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2007. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of
Science honours degree in Chemistry and Administration.
He is the deputy managing partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co.
CPA (Practising). Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, UK as well as The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is
an independent non-executive director of China Merchants
Holdings (International) Company Limited, China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Limited, Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited, Goldlion Holdings Limited, Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited and Wai Yuen
Tong Medicine Holdings Limited, all being listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Li Zhaoxi, aged 68, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since September 2004.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. Li holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration. He
is a senior research fellow of and served as a deputy director at
the Enterprise Research Institute of the Development Research
Center under the State Council of the People’'s Republic of
China. Mr. Li has carried out research on corporate reforms and
management for over 31 years. He is an independent director
of Liaoning Hongyang Energy Resource Invest Co., Ltd, a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, until 18 April
2014,
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Chuanjun, aged 45, joined the Company in
October 2003 as the Chief Financial Officer and had been an
Executive Director of the Company until his resignation on
23 June 2015. He holds a Master’'s degree and a Bachelor’s
degree in Management Accounting and is a senior accountant.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. He is also the deputy chief
financial officer of AVIC International, the chief financial officer
of AVIC International (HK) Group, and a director of Tacko and
Speed Profit Enterprises Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company until 21 January 2016), he is also a director of
certain companies controlled by certain substantial shareholders
of the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Zhang is an executive director and deputy chairman of Peace
Map Holding Limited and had been an executive director and
a vice president of AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited, both being
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Zhang has over 23 years of
experience in accounting and finance.

Mr. Zhong Rong, aged 39, Deputy Chief Financial Officer,
joined the Group in July 2015 and is responsible to assist the
Chief Financial Officer for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. He holds a Master’s degree
in management and is a member of The Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 16 years of
experience in accounting and finance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
(the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

“Corporate Governance Code”

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except as noted hereunder:
1. Except for the Non-executive Director appointed on 23

June 2015, all Non-executive Directors are appointed
without specific terms (code provision A.4.1), details of
which are mentioned under the section headed “NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS” in this report;

2. the Company does not have a nomination committee
(code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4), details of which are
mentioned under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS” in this report; and

3. the Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the

annual general meeting of the Company held in May
2015 as he was on an overseas engagement (code
provision E.1.2).

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.

Directors are required to notify the Chief Executive Officer and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before dealing in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the
case of the Chief Executive Officer himself, he must notify the
Chairman and receive a dated written acknowledgement before
any dealing.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard as set out
in the Model Code throughout the year 2015.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary company who, because
of his office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is
likely to possess inside information in relation to the securities
of the Company). No incident of non-compliance was noted by
the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.
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Currently, the Board comprises five Executive Directors,
including Chairman and Deputy Chairman, and four Non-
executive Directors, including three Independent Non-
executive Directors. An Independent Non-executive Director has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. 5 out of the 9 Directors served throughout the year
2015. The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 13 to 17 of this annual report. There is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) between Board members.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election but as between
persons who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election. A new Director appointed by the Board after the
preceding annual general meeting shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to
the existing Board) and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting.

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The
Board is directly in charge of nomination of Directors. In
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, the Board shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board but so that the number of Directors so
appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined
from time to time by the members in general meeting. For
nomination, consideration will be made to the qualifications
and capabilities of the nominated individual. During the year,
the Board selected and recommended the appointment of Mr.
Lai Weixuan, Mr. Xu Hongge and Mr. Xiao Nan as executive
Directors and Mr. Chow Wai Kam as non-executive Director.
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At present, the Company does not consider it necessary to
have a nomination committee as the Board is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of the
Board and the appointment of new Directors from time to
time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Company, and the Board is also responsible for assessing
the independence of each Independent Non-executive Director
and reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.
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The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate

governance functions under the requirements of the CG

Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its

corporate governance include:

1.

to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect

of corporate governance matters during the year 2015:

performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;

reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices;

reviewed the connected transactions and the continuing
connected transactions of the Group (if any);

reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

E=eRBAERTEEERTRIATERDY
CERERBE EFERELXRERNTE

BB - B

1. i 7E 1
S

PR AR BIMEREARRRE

2. BAREREENARNAEESENS
FRFEEXEER

3. BHRERAAAERTAEREETH
EREMEE R

4. HE B MERARFREREREEH
BT R RERFM (E) 0 Rk

5. WA ARBETREREATUNERL
BA$¥&“EWE’J%‘ZE'§ °
NTREFEN _Z-LFARCEEREE

M TEHEE -

1. BITEXREARATRETHEEE AR
E .
2. BRI AR A ZEEEABRRRER

3. R ARECBEX S LHERERS

(nA)

4. B RRETEEERTA &

5 BEREZREERIARAE R AR
EEMABEERGEEER



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

hEMZETXERER (88) BRAF
Annual Report 2015 —Z— R FFR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBRE

BARBZEERRERE  ARAEESE
EREAEARARZEERITRER - AiED

The senior management of the Company is delegated
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and
administration of the Company and makes operational and
business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of the Company.

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of this insurance each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances through the Chairman at the
expense of the Company. The availability of professional advice
extends to the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the Company Secretary
and, together with any supporting Board papers, are available
to all Board members. During the year 2015, five regular Board
meetings were held by the Company.
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The attendance of individual Directors at regular Board
meetings and other Committee meetings as well as general

meetings during the year 2015 are set out in the table below: =

Number of regular meetings or
meetings attended/held

EEER T AFALFRESTETHERER
HZEBE@Z A LRRRARENCHHRNT

Number of general
meetings attended/held

HE/ BICHEERGBERY HE S BTRREAGRE
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee = Committee Annual Special
Director E= =g ¥MEEE BHREEE BE K5l
Executive Directors HiTEE
Wu Guangquan RyHE 5/5 3/3 - 0/1 0/0
Pan Linwu AR 5/5 - - 1”1 0/0
Lai Weixuan** FEET ** 212 - - 0/0 0/0
Xu Hongge** R+ 212 - - 0/0 0/0
Xiao Nan** B g * 2/2 - - 0/0 0/0
You Lei* g 1/3 - - 0/1 0/0
Ji Guirong* ES ¢ 2/3 - - 0/1 0/0
Zhang Chuanjun* REE* 3/3 - - 0/1 0/0
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Chow Wai Kam** BEEg** 2/2 - - 0/0 0/0
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond* Himpr 3/3 - - 0/1 0/0
Independent Non-executive BT IEHT
Directors EZE
Chu Yu Lin, David ) 5/5 3/3 2/2 I7Al 0/0
Li Ka Fai, David TRIE 5/5 3/3 2/2 m”m 0/0
Li Zhaoxi FIER 5/5 - 2/2 0/1 0/0
* Mr. You Lei, Mr. Ji Guirong, Mr. Zhang Chuanjun and Mr. Ip Tak  * HIELLE  FTEE  REFAERERBIER

Chuen, Edmond resigned as directors of the Company on 23 June
2015. Up to the date of their resignation, three Board meetings and

one general meeting were held during the year.

*x Mr. Lai Weixuan, Mr. Xu Hongge, Mr. Xiao Nan and Mr. Chow Wai ~ **
Kam were appointed as directors of the Company on 23 June 2015.

Two Board meetings and no general meeting were held during the

period from the date of their appointment up to the end of the

year.

During the year 2015, a meeting was held by the Chairman
with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without presence of the Executive
Directors. Save for the annual general meeting, no special
general meeting was held during the year 2015.
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DIRECTORS" TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL

DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director is given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. According to the records provided by the

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors, the Directors received the following training during

the year 2015:

EERIIREREE

EEERBRE

BEHMEZENEFELTEE  EARFTAE
MEABLEREM - AEFREMZE2FERTE
ERNEERE  EWRA ZRREMEER
ETHERE -

ARAEHERBEFL2AFETRER ¥R
I 3R HANR R IRE © IRIBE R IR AR -
EER_T-AFARIUTEI

Type of continuous professional

development programmes

FEESEBRITBER

Reading materials
and updates

Attending briefing
sessions/seminars

BEM B R HEE e
Director BE= EHER maE
Executive Directors HITEE
Wu Guangquan RN HE v v
Pan Linwu EME v v
Lai Weixuan ** FEEE 4 4
Xu Hongge ** TR ** 4 4
Xiao Nan ** B g v 4
You Lej * FiE* - v
Ji Guirong * FEE~ v -
Zhang Chuanjun * RIEE* 4 -
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Chow Wai Kam ** EE %> v v
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond * iz 4 -
Independent Non-executive Directors BUINTESE
Chu Yu Lin, David K4k v v
Li Ka Fai, David BRIE v v
Li Zhaoxi ZIKER v 4
* resigned on 23 June 2015. * RZZE-—RAFNAZ+=HEF-

*x appointed on 23 June 2015.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Currently, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are Mr. Wu Guangquan and Mr. Xu Hongge
respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The Chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that three out of the four Non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgment and fulfill
the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Except for the Non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015, all Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-
executive Directors are appointed without specific terms, but
are subject to retirement by rotation as explained above under
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one Executive
Director, Mr. Wu Guangquan, and two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David (as chairman)
and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration. The role, authority and duties of the Remuneration
Committee are clearly set out in its terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee met three times during the year
2015 to review and recommend the remuneration of Non-
executive Directors and to review and approve the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and senior management. The
attendance of each member is set out in the table above under
section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2015, the
Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management”.

Details of remuneration of members of senior management of
the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out below:

EEERBRE
¥yMEES
FHNZESEANM—RWTES (RARTE)
KMMBEIIFNTES (ROBEEEEER
RERELE) EK - FHEZEENBRERR
MEFERERARTAEETNEESE 2 H M
BER R RHE ~ A R LI 5T B B & B R T 2 52
ZERBAFHAENEFIRUESR - FHES
TNAE  BRRBECDFWIE N LBES
B o

R-ZFE—hFRN FHZESERT=ZRE
& MR REZRFATESTZHH - W
NHERTEENEESBEZHMNTE - &K
BrzHFERsEN bl [E5g ] BTOHER
A o

THRABHMHREZ TEBNRBBIENTE
ENFERRCXRTERNRINAN - Fut
BELRMBARBRITES - RIBEFIEEK -
TAEEHEFMNBBEATFL2EBETEE S
WEFM - R-ZE—RFA - FHZESERM
T(EEFSERAMT BEENATESTR
2REEABNFHEFE) HER -

BHE_Z-—AFT_A=1T—HILEFE &2
AEESEzMeSREAIIMT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration [ k7 A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (Note) £ 1,000,00058 7T (A1:E) 2

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

Note: Included the remuneration payable to the member of senior

management who resigned during the year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems and the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function. It currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David (as
chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Li Zhaoxi. The Audit
Committee met twice during the year 2015 to review the
interim and final results, the interim and annual reports and
the risk management and internal control procedures of the
Group. The attendance of each member is set out in the table
above under the section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS"”. The
duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set out in its terms of
reference.

Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Company. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for auditing
(including interim review) and non-auditing (including taxation
and other professional services) services for the year ended
31 December 2015 amount to HK$2,730,000 and HK$16,500
respectively.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the shareholders of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of the
Group from time to time. The results and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the
Board. No material deficiency was identified. The adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions have also been reviewed
by the Board and Audit Committee. During the year 2015,
the Board considered that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems were adequate and effective and the
Company has complied with the provisions on risk management
and internal control of the CG Code. The Board confirms that
systems and procedures are in place to identify, control and
report on significant risks involved in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives. Exposures to these risks are monitored by
the Board with the support of Audit Committee, internal audit
section and senior management.

The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,
which set out the reporting procedures for handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsui Choi Yee, Connie, the Company Secretary, is an
employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. She has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2015, there was no
change in the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the "“Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionist, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures made available
under section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website
at www.avic.com.hk.
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Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.

General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen clear days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBRE

Detail procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll are also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2015 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 29 May 2015. At the meeting, separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results
of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
The Directors including an executive Director, the chairman
of the audit committee and remuneration committee and a
member of the audit committee and remuneration committee
attended the 2015 annual general meeting and have effective
communication with shareholders.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 3 to 12 of this annual report. This

discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 48 to 200 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 202 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL BN

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised &R @ AR A ZAFEHRD BEITRALEES -
or issued share capital during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BREERE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the ARQFMMBIBARELNGESELES#IK
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would X - #8F AR 8] %A E B IR 2 #5508
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to ~ EZEEFHK -

existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES o] 4 75 K & 8

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available IREREQARNE—NAN\—ZEXHEESE B
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions —Z—HRAF+_-A=+—H ARQaza#n
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to JRF#E35,179,0008 7T « H4N » AR R Z %
HK$35,179,000. In addition, the Company’'s share premium {33 {B#8609,080,00058 7T 0] LABL R AT PR T
account, in the amount of HK$609,080,000, may be distributed A%k ©

in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED BA - BOgHEARRA LTES
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, ARXRIKEFTMHBARINRFABMEREA -
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during ~ BEEEHERRAFHE[] EHES -

the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases attributable to the

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

TEHERREFR

EXERE

AEEFEHEFMEAKRECRBEA DL

Group’s major suppliers are as follows: N
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mEF
% %
Percentage of purchases: HERBEES
From the largest supplier REFRAMRER 4 15
From the five largest suppliers KA RKERERS 11 51

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the

AEBEXBZEFPAEAKEZHEB DL

Group’s major customers are as follows: T
2015 2014
—E-EHF —T—mEF
% %
Percentage of sales: HEEAEI L
To the largest customer KEZRAEF 3 25
To the five largest customers RERAKXEFS 9 71

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:

Wu Guangquan

Pan Linwu

Lai Weixuan (appointed on 23 June 2015)
Xu Hongge (appointed on 23 June 2015)
Xiao Nan (appointed on 23 June 2015)
You Lei (resigned on 23 June 2015)
Ji Guirong (resigned on 23 June 2015)

Zhang Chuanjun (resigned on 23 June 2015)

Non-executive Directors:

Chow Wai Kam
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond

(appointed on 23 June 2015)
(resigned on 23 June 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Li Zhaoxi

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Messrs. Pan Linwu
and Chu Yu Lin, David will retire by rotation. Messrs. Lai
Weixuan, Xu Hongge, Xiao Nan and Chow Wai Kam, the
Directors appointed by the Board on 23 June 2015, shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company. All of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the Independent Non-executive Directors as
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 17 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary
year-end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the
Group at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia,
the Group's operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’'s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which any of the Company’s holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Except for certain Directors who had non-beneficial personal
equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of
the Company, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” above and in the
section of “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" below, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme was valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
37 to the financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2015.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER TEREREMATARG RHEBERK
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING ) 2%
SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the following interests of 5% or RZ-ZE—RAF+-A=1+—H A2 FREE
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded % K& HAE 151 E 3361517 B 2 #E s & o M ATRC 8%
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company HIARREI5%ELIA B BITIRAERS T ¢
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

He:
Percentage of
the Company'’s
issued share
capital as at
31 December 2015
Number of R-ZZE-HF
Capacity and ordinary +=A=+—-AH
Name of shareholders Notes nature of interest shares held ERDBERT
BEREHE Hrat SO RERNE s EREE BRAZEDE
Speed Profit Enterprises Limited (a) Beneficial owner 508,616,000 9.21
("Speed Profit") ExEBA
SVEFIERBER AR ([SEF))
Tacko International Limited (“Tacko”) (a) Beneficial owner 1,386,943,000 25.13
ExBEBA
Through a controlled 508,616,000 9.21
corporation
BmE—EXEEE
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (a) Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 34.34
("AVIC International (HK) Group") corporation
B (B8) REER AT BB —EEEEE
(MBI (B8) £8])
AVIC International Holding Corporation (a) Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 34.34
("AVIC International”) corporation
B R T B R B IR A A BB —-AXEEE
(AR 1)
Aviation Industry Corporation of (a) Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 34.34
China ("AVIC") corporation
mEMETEEERR ([RFHMIED BB A EEE
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") (b) Through controlled 450,000,000 8.15
RIE% (58) FRAR (RIEXD corporations
mBTIEEE
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited ("CKHH") (b) Through controlled 450,000,000 8.15
RIMGZEEXBRAR ((RIMZ)) corporations

BBXIEE
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Notes:

(a)

Speed Profit is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tacko, which in turn
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC International (HK) Group.
AVIC International (HK) Group is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International, which in turn is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
AVIC (62.52% interest controlled by AVIC as at 31 December 2015).
Accordingly, Tacko is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Speed Profit; and each of AVIC International (HK) Group, AVIC
International and AVIC is deemed to be interested in the aggregate
shares directly held by Speed Profit and Tacko.

According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with the
Company, 225,000,000 shares are held by Worsdale Investments
Limited (“Worsdale”) and 225,000,000 shares are held by Hutchison
International Limited (“HIL").

Worsdale is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arra International
Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheung
CKIV is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CKH. CKH is deemed to be interested in
225,000,000 shares held by Worsdale. Meanwhile, HIL is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL"). HWL is
deemed to be interested in 225,000,000 shares held by HIL. CKH is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third

Kong Investment Company Limited (“CKIV").

of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. Accordingly,
CKH is also deemed to be interested in 225,000,000 shares held
by HIL. In addition, CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
accordingly, CKHH is deemed to be interested in the aggregate
shares directly held by Worsdale and HIL.

Biat

15 F ATackoz 2 E M B A A » MTackokH
MER (F%8) EE22EMWE QA o RHMEE
(BB) SBEATMBERZ2EMB AR - MH
MEBRATFMIEZEZEHBAR (R=F—
AE+ZA=FT—H BHPFMIEEH62.52%
#z) o Bt - TackotB R AEBBRIENFAEZ
fafp 2w MAEMBER (F8) £8 - hmE
B R fin TR AR SIS F RTacko B B #5
BzRmEBRPHEAER -

BERIBZAGARDNT 2 = KEBME - Worsdale
Investments Limited ([Worsdale ) §74225,000,000
&M% 15 K Hutchison International Limited ([HIL])
46225,000,000/% 8% 15 °

Worsdale&Arra international LimitedZ 2 & [
BAR] - MArra international Limited&Cheung
Kong Investment Company Limited ([CKIV])
ZERBEMBRA - CKVAERIBEZ2EMW
BAA e RIIEZEWE R R WorsdaleFF B 2
225,000,000% fi% £ o B 5 #E 25 o B2 UL [ B
HILRMEZBARAR (THWL) 2 2EHBA
A © HWLH 4R 73 PRHILEF & .2225,000,0008 %
DAz RIBEBENPHWLZRE KR
g HITESIERITTE=r 2 — N EZ IR -
it RITE ¥ 75 % 45 & RHILEF 225,000,000
BRI R HAEER - N RIIBEZEARIMNG
Z2EEWBAR - RIIFZE AR HER AR
Worsdale RHILE# 58 2 RN B EFHEA e o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no person
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Directors had interests in
the following businesses conducted through the company
named below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

BEXHBEN  KR-F—REF-A=+—
B BmATARAFARGTAAMEBGREE
RAAREES RS EOIE3361ET U RS
ZHESTAA -

EENHRFURER L oES

FA- THNESFFEBTARAIEE NI EBH
e MZEXEBBRBELTMHRBERERE
AEENEBERFHAIEAERENBER
%

Nature of
Name of Director Name of company Nature of interest competing business
EEps NCIRCE BEME BEEBHE
Chow Wai Kam Cheung Kong Property Holdings Executive director - Property development
&% Limited ("CKPH") WITESE and investment

RIBFMERRRAR ((Rit))

(collectively defined as
"Excluded Businesses”)

- MEBRRRNE
(%ehs [ABRE )
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond CKPH Deputy managing director Property development
EEik Rity BESAKE and investment
MEBRRITE

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arms length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow and Mr. Ip,
in the performance of their duties as Directors, have acted and
will continue to act in the best interest of the Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been audited
by Ernst & Young who shall retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Wu Guangquan
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 March 2016

DBRERE
REARRBRBRECEESNER REBEESM
B BEARSEH RBRALELHEEAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT B HEMiREE

e

Ernst & Young RIS EAT Tel EFE: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BBRBRAMEB1E Fax {5K: +852 2868 4432
ﬁ i 1 Tim Mei Avenue PiERE2218 ey.com
I Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 48 to 200, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

B(AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDING (HK) LIMITED
FEIMIZ TREREZR (F8) BRATZEKRR
(REREEMALZFRAA)

& ffI B F|#%AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limitedh BIfiZe TREIBRZER (FE) AR A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT B #Z B EMREE

e
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

RMERBEESTMAGERMBNTERRE
AR ENITES - BLERERRFIE TR
XERAH  TREIRATESZ  KMESS
EREHFEAMBBRRES I FAETMEX
SHERPRA o

BRS RAITEFARRE BSE M IEREM
HeBENBEREENNEZER MEEWER
BUR A% SR 6 1 B - B ¥R R b O BRGF el
RMEBBERA M B RERFEEAHERRANE
@ o AR ERRE  ZBEEERZ AR
RAEEBEMAA NGRS M B RREBOALE
T URHEENEZERF  BUFHZAA
MANREENEREERER - BB
BEEEMRANSHTRRNABEERIELNE
AHERTAEN - U RFESEMBHRRAE
BHHHN -

BFRE RAMESHEREERREEES
WwRERMMEZE RIEHER -



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

REMZE TEERER (F8) BRAF

Annual Report 2015 —ZE — R EFE R

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT B HEMiREE

e
EY=x

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
24 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS iz 88 %k
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE—ZE—HE+-_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-1F —T-|mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
llogz3 FHET FET
REVENUE U 25 5 2,198,590 70,856
Cost of sales SHE R A (2,015,599) (65,033)
Gross profit EF 182,991 5,823
Other income and gains Hu g A K H)E 5 35,029 27,447
Selling and distribution expenses HERZIEEMA (22,998) -
Administrative expenses THEBER (57,169) (62,616)
Other operating income/(expenses), net Higgug A /(L)
ek 6 3,929 (118,185)
Finance costs b 7 (50,353) (2,838)
Net gain on deemed disposal of associates WAL EBENT Y
SEF) 17 433,380 679
Gain on bargain purchase El g e 40 - 169,222
Share of profits and losses of: AMEHFRERE
Joint venture ARNT (27,278) (21,251)
Associates i A SN (41,337) (28,953)
Impairment of an available-for-sale investment &t HH & 18 & 2 FiE
(transfer from available-for-sale investment (R ERE
revaluation reserve) BhHEEAN) 19(c) (311,137) -
Fair value gain/(loss) on equity investment HAFESH ABR Y RAE
at fair value through profit or loss By NEEFE /(E58) (1,204) 65,085
Gain/(loss) on derecognition of RIEERAHEENREYZ  190),
available-for-sale investments FE (E18) 19(b) 224 (24,678)
Fair value gain of available-for-sale AR EMIRE Y ATER
investments (transfer from equity B OAMRIERERERES  190),
on derecognition) @) 19(b) 19,091 5,268
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative MESMIAEZAEEF
financial instruments, net B/ (ER) %8 20 28,146 (8,565)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR R 6 191,314 6,438
Income tax expense FrieRiB Y 10 (107,854) (491)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEHF 83,460 5,947
Attributable to: O AT FER -
Owners of the parent BARIFEE 41,820 27,266
Non-controlling interests TR 41,640 (21,319)
83,460 5,947
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BATEEERSE AEY
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT SRER 11
- Basic and diluted — BERNEE HKO0.76 cent HKO0.59 cent
0.765&4L 0.597 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R&82HIWER
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE—T—AFE+-_A=+—HILtFE

2015 2014
—Z2-HF —ZT-F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz FET T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REBRR 83,460 5,947
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit2 Mk
Other comprehensive income to REZEBEEEEHN
be reclassified to profit or loss in NEEEECAEMEE
subsequent periods: e
Available-for-sale investments: AR ENEE
Changes in fair value NEEEH 19 (307,190) 19,747
Reclassification adjustment for losses/ FFASREBEER S
(gains) included in the consolidated & (FE) 2
statement of profit or loss B OERAE
- Gain on derecognition — 4 FRERR 2 FE 19 (19,091) (5,268)
— Impairment loss — REEE 19 311,137 -
(15,144) 14,479
Share of other comprehensive income of D{GEE& AT 2
associates H2mEas 16,028 (135)
Release of share of an associate’s other Bt N BRI AR A E AR
comprehensive income upon deemed BB Dh 2 % E R T
disposal of the associate 2 HEmEkas (38,241) -
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEREEZ
foreign operations [E R =% (76,206) (18,002)
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REZHBEEEEFRIE
TO BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR EESZHMEZERE
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS AND FERAFHMEE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Wi (NBRBIEER)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (113,563) (3,658)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REZHWHARE
FOR THE YEAR (30,103) 2,289
Attributable to: THIA TR -
Owners of the parent ISYNSIIFSES (45,837) 23,538
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR T 15,734 (21,249)
(30,103) 2,289
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 B &4k R &

31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—F-I1F —T-mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
et FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEMRE 12 31,595 41,297
Investment properties wEMZE 13 373,425 -
Prepaid land lease payments AN L ER 14 2,814 2,958
Intangible asset EBEAE 15 380 570
Investment in a joint venture BENRZKE 16 290,621 317,899
Investments in associates BENRIZIRE 17 24,146 237,963
Financial asset under Project EC120 EC120EB v B E 18 = -
Available-for-sale investments AHEEENRE 19 400,421 121,771
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 20 119,896 125,373
Trade receivable FEULE ZBR 23 21,628 -
Due from a fellow subsidiary JE W [R) 2Bt B A ) 31 3,178 -
Loan to a related company A TIRENE R 24 11,976 18,750
Prepayments TERTRIA 25 278 3,765
Deferred tax assets RERIAE E 35 9,685 -
Total non-current assets MBI EERE 1,290,043 870,346
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development and BEPYENBELRE Y
completed properties held for sale [REID %7 21 4,070,648 4,950,000
Inventories FE 22 4,564 2,855
Trade and bills receivables TEWE ZERRERE 23 155,450 19,379
Due from fellow subsidiaries G ES NG 31 46,016 -
Due from non-controlling shareholder EUHE A T Z
of a subsidiary FEFERR AR R 29 323 -
Loans to associates M R FRHENER 17 = -
Loans to related companies M N RRENER 24 17,230 19,750
Prepayments, deposits and other TENHIE - ke Rk
receivables E YRR 25 61,714 1,204,613
Available-for-sale investments A EEREE 19 - 51,071
Equity investment at fair value through BAFEFTAERZZ
profit or loss A E 26 285,713 166,797
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 20 - 25,497
Prepaid taxes TEIRLIR 27 12,156 120,981
Time deposit with original maturity of S REIHHES
more than three months when acquired =& A 7 FEER 28 = 155,588
Pledged time deposits BB T BER 28 359 375
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEE 28 473,330 1,093,361
Total current assets MEVEERE 5,127,503 7,810,267

continued /...



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfIZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

Annual Report 2015 —ZE — R EFE R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & & B ¥ ik R &

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—F-I1F —T-mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
et FET FHT
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Due to non-controlling shareholders of ~ FETFT B A &2 FE1EA%
subsidiaries AR 29 64,301 49,734
Due to an intermediate holding company  F&{f 1 RI1ERE A 7 30 14,164 -
Due to fellow subsidiaries FE R R B AR 31 4 123,400
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KEARZEZWBATHNER 317 205,988 2,103,087
Trade and bills payables BB SRR RER 32 92,358 8,495
Other payables and accruals HpENZBELESSER 33 32,744 56,083
Customer deposits BPES 248,310 1,757,152
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SERERTER 34 37,964 39,625
Tax payable FERTRRIE 68,139 38,912
Total current liabilities MEAERE 763,972 4,176,488
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 4,363,531 3,633,779
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥E&ERABEE 5,653,574 4,504,125
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FrRBAE
Loans from an intermediate holding AR EERARHNER
company 30 509,581 -
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KEAREZWEBAGTNER 317 1,658,683 258,750
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SEIRITER 34 - 665,061
Deferred tax liabilities BEERBEEE 35 153,652 218,553
Total non-current liabilities FERBEELE 2,321,916 1,142,364
Net assets BEEE 3,331,658 3,361,761
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BRAREEELESR
of the parent
Issued capital BEITIRR 36 551,959 551,959
Reserves i 38 2,185,575 2,231,412
2,737,534 2,783,371
Non-controlling interests IR AR 594,124 578,390
Total equity WS BE 3,331,658 3,361,761
Pan Linwu Xu Hongge
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZRE =B B &*

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—AF+_A=+—HBIFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account
EETRA ROEEBR
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
B et FEIT FEIT
At 1 January 2014 AZE—OF—H—H 461,959 164,477
Profit for the year ARE i F - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: AREE 2 mEUE ¢
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale  A[{tHEHNRE 2 A FE
investments, net of tax 2H) (MkrHER) - -
Share of other comprehensive income AEEEE N E) 2 2 EIRE
of associates - -
Exchange differences on translation REBINEBEE ZERZHE
of foreign operations - -
Total comprehensive income for the year  NFEZEURZSEFE - -
Transfer to reserve fund EREFER - -
Issue of shares BITHRAD 36 90,000 450,000
Share issue expenses R E R 36 - (5,397)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B8 1 ) 40 - -
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+_-_B=+—H 551,959 609,080
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZRE =B B &*

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE—T—AFE+-_A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRAIAAEE R AED

Available-
for-sale
Share  investment Exchange Non-
option  revaluation Reserve  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
AfHHE
KEEMN e 2<% B
B & fEHD & B a5t IEERER R iaE

HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET THET THET TAET THET THET TAET

(note 38)
(#1:£38)

5,193 11,331 7,617 62,327 1,512,326 2,225,230 5,082 2,230,312
- - - - 27,266 27,266 (21,319) 5,947
- 14,479 - - - 14,479 - 14,479
- 5,736 - (5,871) - (135) - (135)
- - - (18,072) - (18,072) 70 (18,002)
- 20,215 - (23,943) 27,266 23,538 (21,249) 2,289
- - 265 - (265) - _ _
- - - - - 540,000 - 540,000
- - - - - (5,397) - (5,397)

_ — - - - - 594,557 594,557

5,193 31,546 7,882 38,384 1,539,327 2,783,371 578,390 3,361,761
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY R E =B B &*

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE T —hE+_-_A=1+—HILFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account

BRITRAE MR 42 % (B ik

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January 2015 R—ZE—RF—HF—H 551,959 609,080
Profit for the year ARE i F - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: ARFEHEM K
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHENREZ A TFEREY
investments, net of tax (FBRTLIER) - -
Share of other comprehensive income DREE R E 2 b R EIE
of associates - -
Release of share of an associate’s other Bt N RIHAR AR ERERE DG 2
comprehensive income upon deemed ZHE N E AR
disposal of the associate - -
Exchange differences on translation REBINEBEEA ZERZHE
of foreign operations - -
Total comprehensive income for the year AREPEUSLAEE - =
Transfer to reserve fund EREFER - -
At 31 December 2015 RZFE-—AF+ZA=+—H 551,959 609,080*
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,185,575,000 (2014: HK$2,231,412,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

* LEERERGEA SRR P LA FE#2,185,575,000/ 7T (Z T —P4 : 2,231,412,000/87T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY RE R B EIR
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE—ZE—RE+-_A=+—HILFEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARMAEEEGER
Available-
for-sale
Share investment Exchange Non-
option revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
AHHE
REEM B =K E
BRERE f#E REE & BFaF BF FERESR ERAE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(note 38)
(H1:238)
5,193 31,546 7,882 38,384 1,539,327 2,783,371 578,390 3,361,761
- - - - 41,820 41,820 41,640 83,460
- (15,144) - - - (15,144) - (15,144)
- 17,211 - (1,183) - 16,028 - 16,028
(5,193) (22,948) - (10,100) - (38,241) - (38,241)
- - - (50,300) - (50,300) (25,906) (76,206)
(5,193) (20,881) - (61,583) 41,820 (45,837) 15,734 (30,103)
= - 10,595 - (10,595) = - -

—* 10,665* 18,477* (23,199)* 1,570,552* 2,737,534 594,124 3,331,658
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZR& R &

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—AF+_A=+—HBIFE

BXR

2015 2014
—E-If —E-MmF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
otz3 FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReZBoReRE
Profit before tax BT A A 191,314 6,438
Adjustments for: AR
Finance costs FHRZ 7 50,353 2,838
Share of profits and losses of a joint DMEEERARBERAIZ A
venture and associates FI &8 68,615 50,204
Bank interest income SRITABUA 5 (11,907) (22,412)
Interest income on a convertible bond AT 2 DR T 2 ARk E
issued by a former associate 72 M EHA 5 (518) (1,036)
Interest income on loans to associates B E RAEIRENERZFIE
I'ON 5 (1,229) (717)
Interest income on other receivables Eb EMERE T 2 F B A 5 - (1,008)
Interest income on loans to related companies R A RRENERZ
MEKA 5 (1,994) (1,780)
Interest income on a derivative financial PTESRITAZFERA
instrument 5 = (313)
Net gain on deemed disposal of associates WRAHEBERAZ
SHAE 17 (433,380) (679)
Gain on bargain purchase FEEW Y= 40 = (169,222)
Depreciation e 6 3,969 4,985
Amortisation of customer relationship REBGR BN 6 190 190
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments EAEN T HEER 6 73 74
Impairment of an available-for-sale AHHENREZRE
investment 19(c) 311,137 -
Provision for impairment of trade and bills RWEFHENERE
receivables THERE 6 6,871 4,371
Provision for impairment/(recovery) of BB REM BRI R
prepayments and other receivables EEME /() 6 (6,152) 39,015
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BENZEEE 2
plant and equipment B4 6 105 -
Provision of impairment of items of property, ME - BEMRXEBELE 2
plant and equipment RERE 6 6,924 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) SN RREHETRZ
of loans to associates BB,/ CRERER) 6 (11,677) 68,535
Impairment of investments in associates BENRZIRE ZRE 6 = 6,264
Fair value loss/(gain) on equity investment BAFEFABRZBA
at fair value through profit or loss REZRTERBE/
(718) 1,204 (65,085)
Loss/(gain) on derecognition of RIFFERATR I EMREZE  190),
available-for-sale investments B/ (F8) 19(b) (224) 24,678
Fair value gain of available-for-sale AHHENREZ ATE
investments (transfer from equity FIE (R IEREREE 19(a),
on derecognition) B A) 19(b) (19,091) (5,268)
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial fTESRIAZATFE
instruments, net BB/ (FE) 38 20 (28,146) 8,565
Fair value gains on investment properties KEWEZ NEFE 5 (757) -
125,680 (51,363)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS & HERE R
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE—ZE—RE+-_A=+—HILFEE

2015 2014
—E-EE T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi FET FET
Decrease in properties under development and BEPYERBENEZ
completed properties held for sale REHDEYE- 1,594,911 -
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERLY /(M) (1,797) 114
Increase in trade and bills receivables EWE SRR R ZEIE (164,791) (9,232)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and ~ TBITEERL - &4 REMEUE
other receivables D/ (4Ehn) 84,455 (34,521)
Increase in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries Ut [E Z KT B2 B 2UE L M (49,194) -
Increase in an amount due from non-controlling JE U BT B X A) 2 FEFE R IR 3R
shareholder of a subsidiary IR (323) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables ENESETREEEN (R
) 84,127 (1,314)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals — Efb BT ZIE M EETE B
Em,/ () (21,514) 8,277
Decrease in customer deposits EEEERD (1,454,289) -
Cash generated from/(used in) operations LEEL/(ER) 254 197,265 (88,039)
Overseas tax paid BATEFIR (40,756) (20,381)
Interest paid BRFHE - (2,838)
Net cash flows used in operating activities REEBPAASRE
e 156,509 (111,258)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEFDZAERE
Purchases of items of property, BAYE  BEMREER
plant and equipment 12 (1,926) (2,923)
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHIEERREMBHRE
an available-for-sale investment 410 -
Additional investment in an associate BN T 2 BBIMRE (4,500) (8,599)
Repayment of a loan from an associate BEAREERER 1,078 125
Proceeds from disposal of club debentures HeEeEERERE 2,680 -
Repayment of loans from related companies M A TEEE S 19,656 -
Advance of a loan to an associate mEE D EREER - (19,108)
Advance of a loan to a related company kA RAREER (11,976) (18,634)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 ) NE] 40 = (219,286)
Bank interest received BUERITHIE 14,836 20,118
Interest received on a convertible bond BIARAIHEARETL
issued by a former associate ARRESR S 518 1,036
Interest received on loans to associates BB E DR ERFE 975 717
Interest received on other receivables BIE MR AR S 2,528 -
Interest received on loans to related BB R RIESFE
companies 4,445 -
Interest received on a derivative BUITESRIEFS
financial instrument = 313
Refunds of a deposit paid for acquisition REWEMEMS T2k
of a property = 6,879
Decrease in pledged time deposits BEATRETRD 4 -
Decrease/(increase) in a time deposit with original ~ EVERREIEIBRBB=EA 2
maturity of more than EHFFORL /(3Em)
three months when acquired 155,588 (155,588)

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities REEHES /(IR 28B4
MEFT 184,316 (394,950)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZR& R &

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE—_T—RAF+_A=+—HBIFE

BXR

2015 2014
—E-EHE —T-mEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FE FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MERBRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG S TIE 36 = 540,000
Share issue expenses BB 36 - (5,397)
New bank loans HMRITER 37,964 39,625
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (675,148) (39,625)
New loans from an intermediate holding company 7 & f BHEA A A6
HER 509,581 -
Repayment of loans from fellow subsidiaries (e EIEES - PNGID
EX (443,090) -
Repayment of advance from the BEREMBERAZ
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary FEIE R R 3R 2 B3R 16,111 (157)
Increase in an amount due to an intermediate JEA AR R AR R R IB B AN
holding company 14,164 -
Increase in amounts due to follow subsidiaries e R Z T B /A B 2 A in 360 -
Interest paid EAF & (392,434) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities BETHEL (AR 28
mEFR (932,492) 534,446
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERREFEEM (D)
CASH EQUIVALENTS RE (591,667) 28,238
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ENzHEeRESEE
of year 1,093,361 1,079,008
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EEEBTEFE (28,364) (13,885)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBRERASEE
AT END OF YEAR 473,330 1,093,361
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND REeRRESEREBZIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be RiR1THRE 28 461,354 544,855
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of E/GE R2|HATE =18 A
less than three months when acquired 2 EIEARE R 28 11,976 548,506
473,330 1,093,361
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

AVIC International Holding (HK
liability company incorporated in Bermuda.

) Limited is a limited
The
registered office of the Company is located at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was mainly involved in the
following activities:

(i) the property development and investment
business*;

(ii) the knitting and textile business; and

(iii) the trading business.

* The Group acquired the property development and
investment business on 30 December 2014 which became
one of the Group’s principal activities. Further details of
the acquisition are disclosed in note 40 to the financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Aviation Industry
Corporation of China, which is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

1.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

REAREEMER (&)

FEMERARNER
AR EEZMBRRZFBLT

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital  to the Company Principal activities
ML, BRTEER AN RES
£ MR &R ks RAERASL TEEK
Direct Indirect
Ef# &

CATIC Helicopter Development PRC/Mainland China HK$42,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Limited RE R E R 42,000,000/ 7T KEER
("CATIC Helicopter SZ")**

PR E AR RS ORI
BRAR ([HREEFEAIN]) *

HIRGE4HBRTERAR PRC/Mainland China HK$6,400,000 - 51 Production and
(“Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu")*** R /R EIRL 6,400,000/ 7T distribution of
(IR EA]) knitting and textile

products, knitted
fabrics and clothing
HERSEM - HE
HERRENEE
R5
Billirich Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000% T REER
EREAHE /BB

Ease Triumph International Limited ~ Hong Kong/Hong Kong ~ HK$250,000,002 - 100 Investment holding
(“Ease Triumph”) B/ R 250,000,002/ 7T REZK

AEBBRARAR ([AE])

EEMEEXERAA PRC/Mainland China US$62,530,000 - 99  Property developer
([EEMEL) ** RE/RERN 62,530,000 T of residential and

commercial projects
FERBEERN
MEER
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2QaREBER (&)

(continued)
EBRHBLATMNESR (&)
RAREZMBARIZFHBOT « (#£)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of

registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital  to the Company Principal activities
MR, BRITEER ERFES
a8 MR &R ks RAERASL TEEK
Direct Indirect
Ef# B
REMEEXBRLA PRC/Mainland China US$96,000,000 - 52.08  Property developer
(TREMEE ) *»¥ HE BRI 96,000,0003 7T of residential and
commercial projects
EERBEFERN
NEER
CATIC General Aviation Holdings British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong 2ET REER
B ) et Y
Wahman Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (EV REEZR
RERUHE /B
Smartcon Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("Smartcon”)* Hong Kong (EV REER
ERALHE /BE
Sanba Investment Limited? British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong E REEK
ERELUHE /BB
Welly Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong ESH REZRR

EBRUEE/BE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

YN

AREEER (&)

FREMBRRANER (&)
AR EEZMBRBZFHBLT « (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital ~ to the Company Principal activities
EMRIL BRTEER ERRE
£ AR E B HARA  REAEZEDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
Ef# B
Sumber Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REER
RERUHE /BE
Kingspot Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ HK$1 100 - Investment holding
("Kingspot")* Hong Kong 1% REER
HEALES /T
Sino-Aviation Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("Sino-Aviation Investments”)* Hong Kong Ep REER
ERALHE /BE
Yipon Investment Limited? British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REER
RERUHE /B
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 2XTT REEK
ERELAHE /BB
* CATIC Helicopter SZ is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned * LB E A HEOR IR IR+ BUEBIFER A
enterprise under PRC law. INEBERE -
o Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu is registered as a co-operative o MIRGSFREFBEEMNFMAEE

joint venture under PRC law.

FxE FEME and KEME are registered as sino-foreign co-
operative joint ventures under PRC law.

# None of the statutory financial statements of these
subsidiaries was audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

3

BEMEERAEREREDBUAMIEM
RPIIEEDRE -

P It I B R B A E BT S 3R R 19 3E
BMEZKEBR T K EHBEEMBRER
AlEZ -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

On 30 December 2014, the Group acquired Ease
= F M B and K& Ml ZE from a fellow
subsidiary of the Company. Further details of this

Triumph,

acquisition are included in notes 40 and 44(b) to the
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"),
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the

accounting principles generally accepted

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, equity investment at fair
value through profit or loss, certain available-for-sale
investments, and derivative financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

1.

2.1

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(0) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

2.1

mBERE (5

REEE
REMBHRREBBEARANEME QA
(M (A8 BE_T—HF+_H
ST BLEFEZHMBERER - HEBAR
DARBERREEEGNZEE (21
REBEER) EAKER2EPKER
AIREMT A EB O HA R AEL
FHEN  WEEHARRERRERR
BAONTELRE R (BRF ZHEF A
HARBRENHE TRIRE QR ZHEEE
8)  BIRERANEEHEEZHE -

AR B ERREEEAPIRE QAN
BRERSBUENIONRAZH - AIAE
BRFEEEERAYRRERA 2
IEEEE—UHEBFERERL &
&

(@) HERREQNFEMBEFTAAZ
BRZHE

(b) EMANRPMEEZEN K&
(0 AKRBZREERBECRSE-

P /8 2~ 7] B 75 ¥R R B0 R 5 B BN 2 R
HE - Y EHRBERNRAE] B2 BER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

2.1
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 EBXRREBEECEE
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards AEEBCRAFENT BRI TR

for the first time for the current year’s financial LA T &IEFT 4R -

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: B GRERE 1SR IER T EFEFIE) -

Employee Contributions SHGL

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle BEYBHREEA —FE—FFZ—F—
Z IR F R

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle BN BHEEN —F——F2 —F—
= F AR JE 2

The nature and the impact of each amendment is BB 2 B RN TFr

described below:

(@)  Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions (a) EBGFEBIBI19EMIEE
from employees or third parties to defined benefit FRREEB &S =77 T REEF
plans. The amendments simplify the accounting ETEIMMHER - ZEEIT BT
for contributions that are independent of the REERBFEHNERN SR
number of years of employee service, for example, B EEHFBEFSHETE
employee contributions that are calculated LEBETTEE - MRS EBE L
according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the RIRFSFE - BRI UEREER
amount of the contributions is independent of the HEBRREEE GRS HfRER
number of years of service, an entity is permitted R A RIE - BRAE
to recognise such contributions as a reduction B AT ERE R AT & - %
of service cost in the period in which the related LEFAT I EE ARNEEE KT
service is rendered. The amendments have had no Zo

impact on the Group as the Group does not have
defined benefit plans.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Details of
the amendments that are effective for the current
year are as follows:

o HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that
an entity must disclose the judgements
made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8,
including a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated
and the economic characteristics used to
assess whether the segments are similar.
The amendments also clarify that a
reconciliation of segment assets to total
assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the
chief operating decision maker. The
amendments have had no impact on the
Group.

° HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies
the treatment of gross carrying amount
and accumulated depreciation or
amortisation of revalued items of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets.
The amendments have had no impact on
the Group as the Group does not apply the
revaluation model for the measurement of
these assets.

22 BRBREBEZS2H (&)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

o HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures:
Clarifies that a management entity (i.e.,
an entity that provides key management
personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure
requirements. In addition, an entity that
uses a management entity is required
to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group as the Group
does not receive any management services
from other entities.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Details of
the amendments that are effective for the current
year are as follows:

o HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies
that joint arrangements but not joint
ventures are outside the scope of HKFRS
3 and the scope exception applies only to
the accounting in the financial statements
of the joint arrangement itself. The
amendment is applied prospectively. The
amendment has had no impact on the
Group as the Company is not a joint
arrangement and the Group did not form
any joint arrangement during the year.

22 EBRBRREBEZSH (&)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) (continued)

o HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement:
Clarifies that the portfolio exception in
HKFRS 13 can be applied not only to
financial assets and financial liabilities, but
also to other contracts within the scope
of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as applicable.
The amendment is applied prospectively
from the beginning of the annual period
in which HKFRS 13 was initially applied.
The amendment has had no impact on the
Group as the Group does not apply the
portfolio exception in HKFRS 13.

o HKAS 40 /Investment Property: Clarifies
that HKFRS 3, instead of the description
of ancillary services in HKAS 40 which
differentiates between investment property
and owner-occupied property, is used to
determine if the transaction is a purchase
of an asset or a business combination.
The amendment is applied prospectively
for acquisitions of investment properties.
The amendment has had no impact on the
Group.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) issued by the
Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial year.
The main impact to the financial statements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
financial statements.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H
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23 EEMEEMKRERZEBHBR
HEA
AEBYWERAMEHRERABAATE
AR E R RER ] RGBT EBY

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

TR -

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? ERMBREENESR 2HTA
Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets BB REES REZHREHES
10 and HKAS 28 (2011)  between an Investor and its FI07RES NNV i)
Associate or Joint Venture® SR E285 EEMERER
(ZB——F)W
EH
Amendments to HKFRS  Investment Entities: Applying the BB BRE R REEE  EAGAE
10, HKFRS 12 and Consolidation Exception’ 105 BEAUE AFaIpI91ER
HKAS 28 (2011) HFEAB125 R
BE %aﬁ&ﬁ'J%ZSﬁ
(Z5——F) mEs
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of BRTBREES WS EXFEZA
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations' ENRNET Bi A
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® BRMBEREER HEEBLEL?
F14%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRMBEEER EP& ik’
Customers? E15%
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative' BREHENE RN  HEHF
B3]
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods ERGEREI6 N BBTEREHEY
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation’ BB ERE38% EZHE

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants'
and HKAS 41

MEF]
BAERMENF 165K
BEGER R4

RE  LENREY

#EET
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial ERGTEREIR  BUHEHES
(2011) Statements' (Z2——F) QBT #zx
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to a number of ZE—#FF-F— P_ZME HELERRNBRSE
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs' B EE N # EREL 2 B3]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016
and therefore is not applicable to the Group

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available
for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant principles for business combinations in HKFRS
3. The amendments also clarify that a previously held
interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the
acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a
scope exclusion has been added to HKFRS 11 to specify
that the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are
under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of
the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs. In September 2015, the HKICPA issued
an amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a one-year
deferral of the mandatory effective date of HKFRS 15 to
1 January 2018. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15
on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact
of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments

clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit
or loss and the statement of financial position
may be disaggregated;

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and the statement
of profit or loss. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from
operating business (of which the asset is part) rather
than the economic benefits that are consumed through
the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based
method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has
not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and the joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or the joint
venture is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or the joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EAES:HREHE (£)

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

24 EAESHHEHME (£)

BB ()
b) EHAEE- BELTAMTAE
f: (4)

(v ZEBX@QEZRZALE
Hl IR

pl

(vii) (@QEBZALHZERE
BERFENSBZER
(HRERZERA) 2
EEEEKRE &

i

ZERIZERMBRE
ZEMKE AR /ANEE
SAKEZ G RAHRHEE
BRSBTS

(viii)

¥ BENREBRITE

WE BENMREBHEREBRRETE
RAEMBEBBRAR - W% - BE MK
BZHEBZRABEERBEEREMAE
BB BUBEIOR Ko B A R E R i
ZEERBKA

WX - BMENREEBRAEERY
RzER (IEEREER) —REEX
HHRERERT MG - AN ERE
AMBERT  HEETERENIHAR
BMABANFAEREEZEERMAE -
HWHE - BMEMRENEZRLORTED
REE  ANEEGERZBORELA
BREERFREEL ARG -



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfIZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

Annual Report 2015 —ZE — R EFE R

2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the lease terms
10% - 20%
20% - 33%
20% — 25%

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from inventories to investment properties,
any difference between the fair value of the property at
that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost of properties under development
comprises cost of acquisition, land cost, construction costs,
development costs, capitalised borrowing costs and other
direct costs attributable to the development. The land cost
is recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease term.
Impairment is assessed by the directors based on prevailing
market prices, on an individual property basis.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by apportionment
of total development cost, including capitalised borrowing
cost, attributable to the unsold units. Net realisable value
is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds,
or estimated by management based on the prevailing
market conditions, less all estimated costs to completion
and selling expenses, on an individual property basis.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 6 years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. When the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

2.4

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H
EREFBEBE ()

BREE (BERI)

ERHBE R EEN VAR IZK
A B REGBEHKUBZEBTLEE
ZRANBEE B 2 A EE - B
BEZARAEHMAMERERLER -
FHARZENEELRNAIERARLE
FHANEE UNXNZEBEVEELBRRBE
BREETRERN S - IRFHBRZ
BVEEZHEMIBHTEAZELR
BEPBFERE R X o

EFBF
EFBAERERBRRAREMREESRZ
5 WARBEfEEHE A F e FIRRE AR
BRI -

HE

HEEREAE CREXRERI) 2 K8
ERERREEEAEE 2B A
MEMOKEE - EREMROHRE M
EREZRARKEBEENREZRE
FTUREXRE - WERER (FEFHE) 5
R URBRBANBERBR - REEXR
fteREBANOTEZEE (BREREMR
WTZENEHEER FAYVE B
FEHERER  XIREEZHER &G
ARFEHZBEEFENE - ZEHY
ZRERARBRRANE  URHEE
HEEETER -

REERAE 2 RNE @ ]| & RS b
MAFREZBROBINBEEHO - HA
SERABAN RELEHEOZEN
He (KMka HE AR 2 EAESR
®) RESZNEEHRNBERZRN

o=

™



oo

[ 3

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REfIZE TEBEREZER (58) GRAA

Annual Report 2015 —Z— R EF R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt s

31 December 2015 =& —

2.4

AE+=-—A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include the financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging

instruments as defined by HKAS 39.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gain
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in other operating expenses for loans and
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity investments and debt securities and a financial
asset under Project EC120 as set out in notes 19 and
18, respectively, to the financial statements. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the statement of profit or loss in other operating
expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate.
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt s

31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of other income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of
the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities include amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries and non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, loans from fellow subsidiaries and an
intermediate holding company, trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions would be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it was recognised as income on a systemic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:
(a) from the sale of properties, when the significant
risks and rewards of the properties are passed to
the purchasers when (i) an irrevocable sale and
purchase contract has been entered into by both
buyer and seller; (ii) the seller has received or
retained the right to receive all the consideration
of the sale; (iii) the construction has been
completed, and its quality has been inspected and
accepted by the relevant government authorities;
(iv) the ready-for-delivery conditions under the
sale and purchase contract have been fulfilled,;
and (v) the notices of property delivery have been
sent to the buyer;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EAES:HREHE (£)

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established; and

() from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the Group’s
right to receive its share of profit from Project
EC120 has been established (note 18).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

2.4

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

EXRSFTERBE (&)

RGN (F)

B AR HEH X 5 2 PR N R o 2 4R e 4
MEE - REBKRER SR EZH
RANMEBBAF R - REEAH
ZH REBERERARABRAEERS
Rz R EARRFEBHC Emsd
NEAEEBHEREBEZRATAHE
ZREME - MR AR ERERR HET
AZRBEERBMOERRERZREE
Rz -

B F R 2 & B R FEL N EBRS
RIEIH RIS - HEBBERRIT 2 7]
BEMERIRT E RS R BB A AR EE
@m THBBZ&ERBT 280 - M5
REGHEBRRERE R 2 RAFER -
P 5 0 22 B R B I AR A B R TS B SRk 2
H A 0] R 1 B AR D IR B R 1T © BRIE
MERB KR/ LERB G - BRIZERE
AR AF TS0 B8R 2 P B e R 3 28 B 42
EIRIAF ST3H -

HREREEZEFETSRRER LR
BRI M AR R ER B 2 52 - TR
FIX o fi 2R B IR — A 5 IR R B 1%
- ERHSIGERBIRTEEEN
ZXPEUBHEAR/CRE - AIIREMA
B KRB R RRB G REZEK -

ERAEERMREGRECEITZE
T HEERT R R - Al D HER
R A& I #EAE 5T 6 BB {5 3R B P EE A A0 9
o AN MHIERTE BB AEN AR
FERN HEEHREMADE - 5
SIREFEH 2 BERFX -

o™

™



£ AvIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMRE T EERER (555) BRA
- Annual Report 2015 —Z— R EF R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt s
31 December 2015 —E—RF+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EAES:HREHE (£)

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were
granted. The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The liability is measured at the end of each
reporting period up to and including the settlement
date, with changes in fair value recognised in the
Group's statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme being effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution provident fund for
those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the fund. This fund operated in a
way similar to the MPF Scheme, except that when
an employee left the fund prior to his/her interest
in the Group’s employer contributions vesting fully,
the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
were reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. Upon the implementation of the MPF
December 2000, the
provident fund was frozen and no further contributions

Scheme with effect from 1

by the Group or the eligible employees were made after
that date. When eligible employees leave the Group,
they receive their entitlements pursuant to the existing
rules of this fund.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint venture and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

Classification of equity investments among
investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
and an investment in a joint venture

In determining whether an equity investment is classified
as investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
and an investment in a joint venture, the Group
considers a number of factors including (1) whether the
Group has the power to exercise control; (2) whether the
Group can exercise significant influence; and (3) whether
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control
is required for the relevant activities of the investee
company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2015 was HK$37,448,000 (2014: HK$44,030,000).
Further details are included in note 35 to the financial
statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from
a variety of sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties
of a different nature, condition or location,
adjusted to reflect those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
(continued)

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and (when possible) by external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the

cash flows.

The aggregate carrying amount of investment properties
at 31 December 2015 was HK$373,425,000 (2014: Nil).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for
fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are
included in note 13 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. They are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

3.

EEGRT B RMEE (&)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) HET N TEEY (&)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, ¥ BEFREEEZ JEHFHR
plant and equipment BlE

In determining the useful lives and residual values of REBSHYE BMENZEIEAE
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has EREAFHREAER @ZETEE

to consider various factors, such as expected usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on
the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the
residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial
year based on changes in circumstances. The carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment at 31 December
2015 was HK$31,595,000 (2014: HK$41,297,000). Further
details are included in note 12 to the financial statements.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and
deposits and other receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated losses
arising from the inability of the customers or borrowers
to make the required payments. The Group makes the
estimates based on the ageing of trade and bills receivables
and deposits and other receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of the customers or borrowers was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might
be higher than expected, the Group would be required
to revise the basis of making the allowance and the
future results would be affected. The carrying amounts
of trade and bills receivables and deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2015 were HK$177,078,000
(2014: HK$19,379,000) and HK$45,064,000 (2014:
HK$71,070,000), respectively. Further details are included
in notes 23 and 25 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of recoverable amounts of properties
under development

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including recent prices of similar properties in
the same location and condition, with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
date of transactions that occurred at those prices.

Estimation of total budgeted costs and costs to
completion for properties under development

Total budgeted costs for properties under development
comprise (i) prepaid land lease payments; (ii) building
costs; and (iii) any other direct costs attributable to
the development of the properties. In estimating the
total budgeted costs for properties under development,
management makes reference to information such as (i)
current offers from contractors and suppliers; (i) recent
offers agreed with contractors and suppliers; and (iii)
professional estimation on construction and material

costs.

Land appreciation tax

Under the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of
Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains
arising from the transfer of real estate properties
in Mainland China with effect from 1 January 1994
are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EESitHER G (&)

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) AN TREY (&)

Land appreciation tax (continued) LB EH (&)

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the REEWBARIR PR KNEREESE
property development business in Mainland China BEBINAZMLIBET - Af - A+
are subject to LAT. However, the implementation of B KB A R0 T 6 3R B R 2 B R
LAT varies amongst various Mainland China cities and MR - WA S E IR 5T R A R AR
the Group has not finalised certain of its LAT returns WRERmE T Mg EN - Bt - NE
with various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant E LIS EE BB IEREFELEXR
judgement is required in determining the amount of FIE - EBEEBBREPEETIEEE
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax FETHEN AEEEREEREENR
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course ERFERZEAE EREFTELE
of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based MRTEEREVRIIR BELRER
on management’s best estimates. When the final tax B ZEREZE/RNEAEREETEH
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts AT R T IS ER B EER T E -
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact

on the income tax and provisions of LAT in the period in

which such determination is made.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHWEH

Following the Group’s new development in property
development and investment business during the year
ended 31 December 2015, management changed the
composition of its reportable segments to add the new
property development and investment business segment
and removed the previous aero-technology related
business segment as the previous aero-technology
related business segment did not contribute any segment
revenue and results to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014. No restatement of the comparative
segment information is required.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three (2014: three) reportable operating segments
as follows:

(a) the property development and investment
business segment engages in the property
development of residential and commercial
projects (new in 2015);

(b) the knitting and textile business segment engages
in the production and distribution of knitting and
textile products, knitted fabrics and clothing; and

(c) the trading business segment engages in the
trading of raw materials and auxiliary materials.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure
of adjusted profit/(loss) for the year. The adjusted profit/
(loss) for the year is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit/(loss) for the year except that certain
income and gains or losses relating to investments in a
joint venture and associates and financial instruments,
gain on bargain purchase, as well as head office and
corporate expenses (including impairment of loans to
associates, impairment of investments in associates and
recovery of other receivable) and unallocated income tax
are excluded from such measurement.
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4.

AE+=-—A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ReESEER (2)
(continued)
Property development  Knitting and textile
and investment business business Trading business Total
NERRRREER SHEARGEER ER%% A
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—%-1f “B2-NF —B-1f -T-MF -1 -“Z-NF —B-1f “T-MF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FET FE TEx FET FET FET TEx FEr
Segment revenue: 2B
Sales to external customers HEEEHE 2,137,619 - 43,602 53,413 7,644 17,443 2,188,865 70,856
Gross rental income EREMA 9,725 - - - - - 9,725 -
2,147,344 - 43,602 53,413 7,644 17,443~ 2,198,590 70,856
Segment results ARRE 35,065 - (14,05)  (43,509) 175 2,987 21,184 (40,522)
Reconciliation: ek
Unallocated other income FAREBBA 4,461 21,261
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMAAERX
eXpenses (15,957)  (131,201)
Net gain/(loss) on deemed disposal REAHERENRZ
of associates BN/ (BR) 433,380 679
Gain on bargain purchase SERERE - 169,222
Share of profits and losses of: AMEEFIRER :
Joint venture ARLT (27,278) (21,251)
Associates N (41,337)  (28,953)
Impairment of an available-for-sale AEHEENRE 2 RE
investment (311,137) -
Fair value gain/(loss) on equity investment & A FEF A B2 2 B
at fair value through profit or loss REZDTENE/
(B#) (1,208) 65085
Gain/(loss) on derecognition of RIERATHEENRE L
available-for-sale investments HE/ (B8 24 (24,678)
Fair value gain of available-for-sale ARHENREC A TE
investments (transfer from equity I (AR BB
on derecognition) BREN) 19,091 5,268
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative ITHESRIAZATE
financial instruments, net M/ (BR) 58 28,146 (8,565)
Unallocated income tax expense FORFAEHEY (26,113) (398)
Profit for the year KERF T 83460 5047
Other segment information: HipaHEs
Bank interest income TR ERA 769 - 14 7 9,010 4,146 9,793 4,153
Unallocated bank interest income AORBAFEMA 2,114 18,259
11,907 22,412
Depreciation and amortisation TEREBH (1) - (1,639) (2,947) (1,225) (165) (2,865) (3,112)
Unallocated depreciation and RAEMEREH
amortisation (1,294) (2,063)
(4,159) (5,175)
Finance costs BE Y (47,638) - (2,715) (2,838) - - (50,353) (2,838)
Provision for impairment of items of nE BEREZEEEZ
property, plant and equipment AEEE - - (6,924) - - - (6,924) -
Provision for impairment of trade and EREFERREEL
bill receivables HERE - - (6,871) (4.371) - - (6,871) (4,371)
Recovery/(provision for impairment) of BN FEREMEMERZ
prepayments and other receivables WE /(HERE) - - 2426 (37,752) - - 2426 (37,752)
Unallocated recovery/(provision for FABZARFERA M
impairment) of prepayments and eI e/
other receivables (RERE) 3,726 (1,263)
6,152

b (39,015)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
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Geographical information & & R
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a) KEINBEF Kz
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—4E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Mainland China A B P 2,198,590 70,856
The revenue information above is based on the FiuiEmER R EEEE 2
location of the customers. TEHE S ©
(b)  Non-current assets (b) FHBEE
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Hong Kong £ 24,411 256,840
Mainland China AR A HE 688,668 347,612
713,079 604,452
The non-current asset information above is FHIERHEEERNIREE Y
based on the location of the assets and excludes izl s WABERBEE
financial assets and deferred tax assets. NIELETTBEE ©
Information about major customers FEREF2ER

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no
single customer with sales amounting to 10% or more
of the Group's revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue of
approximately HK$22,970,000 had been derived from
sales by the knitting and textile business segment to two
customers, and approximately HK$17,443,000 had been
derived from sales by the trading business segment to
one single customer.
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the sale of properties; the net

invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns

and trade discounts; and gross rental income received

and receivable from investment properties during the

Wi~ HlWA KRR E

W hiEFAMERHER  CEEMm

BERE (KBRS

B kA

BREMECUEEENERSWA -

year.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as Was s A ARFESTOT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue Y &5
Sale of properties VI HE 2,137,619 -
Sale of knitting and textile products BRI EEmIEE 43,602 53,413
Sale of raw materials and auxiliary FERR R E M R &
materials 7,644 17,443
Gross rental income FEHRSUWA 9,725 -
2,198,590 70,856
Other income Habg A
Bank interest income RITH B A 11,907 22,412
Interest income on a convertible bond  HBTEE S A R (T2 B[R
issued by a former associate B2 F B WA 518 1,036
Interest income on a derivative TESMIAEZFBWA
financial instrument - 313
Interest income on loans to associates MEEA A GIRHAIER Y
FLEBA 1,229 717
Interest income on other receivables H b fEUR BR 20 2 R B UE A - 1,008
Interest income on loans to M A RIRENERZ
related companies FEW A 1,994 1,780
Government grant* BIT#BE* 17,800 26
Others Hith 824 155
34,272 27,447
Gains F5E
Fair value gains on investment WEME 2 A FENHE
properties (note 13) (Hi7E13) 757 -
35,029 27,447
* This represents subsidies from municipal government in * LB HE B R T B AT B0 B o 52 ST

Mainland China. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these subsidiaries.

B A B AW R B G I
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

6. BRBIATEF

AEEZBBANEFEMR (GTA)

(crediting):
2015 2014
—B-0% —T-mEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Wi FET FAET
Cost of properties sold* M) E S E R A 1,967,041 -
Cost of goods sold* EWEER A 48,558 65,033
Depreciation neE 12 3,969 4,985
Amortisation of customer relationship REME 15 190 190
Minimum lease payments under operating &R &M4 7 HIEHEE
leases 5,080 5,325
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments #ERFER T E R 14 73 74
Employee benefit expense (excluding RERFER (185
directors' remuneration (note 8)): BEMe (H:728)) -
Wages and salaries IErEs 30,269 17,096
Pension scheme contributions** BIRSEHEI R+ 935 231
31,204 17,327
Other operating expenses/(income), net: HigamE /(WA)
FEE
Provision for impairment of items MmE - BENHRFEELD 2
of property, plant and equipment RERELE 12 6,924 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) MBS R ARENERZ
of loans to associates wE/(RERE) 17 (11,677) 68,535
Impairment of investments BENRZRE ZRE
in associates - 6,264
Provision for impairment of trade EWESFELREE L
and bills receivables BB E 23 6,871 4,371
Provision for impairment/(recovery) TR A RE MK ERR A
of prepayments and ERE/(KE)
other receivables 25 (6,152) 39,015
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEDE  BMEMREBEZ
plant and equipment &5 105 -
(3,929) 118,185
Auditors' remuneration ZHMME 2,380 2,240
Foreign exchange differences, net HNE R =583 10,716 (247)
Direct operating expenses (including repairs  ABREVE S AR E WERT
and maintenance) arising on rental-earning EAHEELEE
investment properties (BEEEREE) 479 -
* Included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of * PREEREEERT [HEKREK] A -
profit or loss.
*x At 31 December 2015, the Group had no forfeited *x RZE-—RAF+ZA=+—08  x£H

contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years (2014: Nil).

A A AR 208 WA SROAT AR IRL A R 2R
FEZEASHIAER (T —HEF:
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31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

7.

FINANCE COSTS 7. H®BBEX
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBRZTOT

2015 2014
—E-fHF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans and other loans $RITEZX R EMERZ 78 269,034 2,838
Less: Interest capitalised W BERMEF R (218,681) -
50,353 2,838

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEfS

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

RiEETHRA - BB RBEDIFE383(1)
(@~ (b)) OROERAR (KREEEH
B2ER) ROIF2MBREZFANEEH

mF :

2015 2014

—Z-1f%F —T-lF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Fees e 836 840

Other emoluments: Hip 4 -

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYFE

in kind 1,993 8,487

Performance related bonuses TERIBHABIEA - 1,790

Pension scheme contributions RIRESEHEIMH R 119 274

2112 10,551

2,948 11,391
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31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive
Directors during the year were as follows:

8. EEM=E (&)

(a)

BIAFHITES
RERIHFBILIFERNTESZ
wWEmT

2015 2014

—E-I1f%F %

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Chu Yu Lin, David Kahk 240 240
Li Ka Fai, David ERIE 240 240
Li Zhaoxi ZJKER 60 60
540 540

There were no other emoluments payable to the
Independent Non-executive Directors during the
year (2014: Nil).

RERI &AM &N TIBILIE
HWITEZENHE (T —MOF:
®) -
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31 December 2015 —E—RF+-_A=+—H

8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

8. EEM= (&)

Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) HITESERIHTES
Directors
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e
BHR IfRR Bikg
ik BENFR il Al FHEIER e
2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-1f T Tz FET T FET
Executive Directors: HTES:
Wu Guangquan R 36 - - - 36
Pan Linwu AR 36 - - - 36
Lai Weixuan BES 19 - - - 19
Xu Hongge it 19 - - - 19
Xiao Nan Big 19 - - - 19
You Lei miE 17 - - _ 17
Ji Guirong FEH
(resigned on (R=E—1F
23 June 2015) ~NAZT=H
BE) 15 1,613 - 91 1,719
Zhang Chuanjun REE
(resigned on (R=Z2—1%
23 June 2015) ~AZTZH
BE) 15 380 - 28 423
176 1,993 - 119 2,288
Non-executive Directors:  JFEITEE
Chow Wai Kam A% 63 - - - 63
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond BEn 57 - - - 57
296 1,993 - 119 2,408




AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REME TREBER (55%) ARAF

Annual Report 2015 —ZE — R EFE R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors (continued)

8. EEM=E (&)

(b)

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

BTESRFUTES (B)

Performance Pension
related scheme Total

Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e
2E R TERR RIke
e BN Vsl pean BE a3 B¢ 2%
2014 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-QF FET FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors: HTES:
Wu Guangquan RtHE 36 - - - 36
Pan Linwu B 36 - - - 36
You Lei miE 36 - - - 36
Ji Guirong FEX 36 6,999 750 219 8,004
Zhang Chuanjun RES 36 1,488 1,040 55 2,619
180 8,487 1,790 274 10,731
Non-executive Director: FaTES:
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond g8 120 - - - 120
300 8,487 1,790 274 10,851

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2014: Nil).

FRAYEEARFEEESRE
SRERRTMME (ZF N
FE) -
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. ILEERAHEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included FA hEGeHEEREME (ZF
two (2014: two) executive directors, of which one of —UF - W) ITEE (RAFE - E
them resigned from his position and the other resigned R—H2EBHERE LS BB BERT
from his position as executive director but remained to EZRBEDARAREESRE)  #E
be a senior management of the Company during the e FBEEN EXMF8s Hr=%4
year, details of whose remuneration are set out in note ZE-MF =R) AFRSHIES
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the BE (HAWMEBERANFERERE) 2
remaining three (2014: three) highest paid employees MEFBELT -

who are not a director of the Company of which two of
them resigned from their position during the year are as

follows:
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Basic salaries, allowances and EAFH& 2B NEWI =
benefits in kind 3,743 2,462
Pension scheme contributions RIRKES IR 87 115
Performance related bonuses TYERIRMBEAIEA 220 2,859
4,050 5,436
The number of non-director highest paid employees e THE e IFEESREEH
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as B
follows:
Number of employees
EE®E
2015 2014
—2-1fF —TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%& L&
1,500,000/ 7T - 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L2
2,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 &
3,500,000/ 7T - 1
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INCOME TAX 10. FRfEH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made AR AEBAFRATETRFERESZ
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits FERBLEF - A WA B BFE TR
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2014: Nil). Taxes HW(ZE—HFE: &) HMEER
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at BamAl 2 RIEM TR AN B TR
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in R/ BEREERIHERTE -
which the Group operates.
The provision for LAT has been estimated according TR ER  BEDIRA R BED &
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC laws BIGFTE 2 HEERhET o THIEER
and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of ZIZEEERGRE TR BRE
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain RREEB R 2IEE LB -
allowable deductions.
2015 2014
—E-afF —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current — Elsewhere: ENER — A&

Charge for the year ARERE 100,273 614
Deferred (note 35)* EIE (faE35) * (67,284) (123)
LAT in Mainland China FR B 2 £ IR (E R 74,865 -
Total tax charge for the year AEMIER S BEE 107,854 491

* Included in the deferred tax credit of
HK$67,284,000 (2014: HK$123,000)
was deferred LAT in Mainland China of
HK$47,660,000 (2014: Nil) relating to the fair
value adjustments arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries in 2014, which became payable in
the current year and has been included in LAT in
Mainland China of HK$74,865,000 (2014: Nil)
above.

* 67,284,000 7t (ZF — M4 :
123,000 7T) ZiELERIAE %8
FEE-_Z—NOFWHEHEARE
ERRFEFHEMEKHFERA
2 3RS + I {E 147,660,000
B (ZE—NF : &) - ZPH
Wy 2 EE + IR E AR AN F i
AN B IEEL 74,865,000
BT (ZZ—UF - 8&) 2FER
2 THIREFAF o
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31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/

10. FrBH (&)

BARRRETENBRARMERR
BRI AT R R EEARBREA

jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of

MR ERX BARNFRERT R 2

its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the HRZ 2 HRET -
effective rate for the year is as follows:
2015 2014
—B-hfF —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before tax 75 BT 4 A 191,314 6,438
Tax at the statutory tax rates AT EFTE 2 I8 25,869 (11,425)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on REBZHBRMEARZ
the distributable profits of the A IR B R 5 % 1 2
Group’s PRC subsidiary FEZES B 26,113 -
Profits and losses attributable SMEEERA R ERRZ
to the joint venture and associates ) & B 1 13,403 12,820
Income not subject to tax BAEMBIWA (83,435) (45,100)
Expenses not deductible for tax TS 2 X 51,039 44,196
LAT in Mainland China A B R ith 2 1 MG (E A 74,865 -
Tax charge at the Group's effective BAEEBRTE56.4% (=
rate of 56.4% (2014: 7.6%) T—PUF : 7.6%) stE 2B
BRX 107,854 491
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11.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

INCOME TAX (continued)

Share of tax charge attributable to associates of
HK$1,399,000 (2014: HK$3,836,000) is included
in “Share of profits and losses of associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There was no tax charge attributable to the joint
venture shared by the Group during the year (2014:
HK$917,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 5,519,591,000
(2014: 4,626,988,260) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 in respect of a dilution as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during those years.

10.

11.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

PRt (&)

SIEEE A F 2 BIIEFM 1,399,000/ 7T
(ZZ— P04 : 3,836,000/ ) B 5t A
REBERZ [DEBERARZ B K
EiElwe

Py AREL DA E DR 2B
BISE (=2 —P04F : 917,00087T) °

BRAAEBREREEARGER
27

BRERBFERENHIBESD AR L @EE
BEBAREAFENRFANEHITYE
W% 2 hiAE F59285,519,591,0000% (=
T—[U4F : 4,626,988,2605%) 51 & o

—E-RFER-FT-MF
—BULEFEYEEMEEL

AT E B B Y
Bz BRERBMSREEL
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt s
31 December 2015 —E—RF+-_A=+—H

12. Y% BENRE

Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
TR BER G #EB
BF e PET AE &it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEx FET FET
31 December 2015 ZE-RF+ZfA=1+-H
At 31 December 2014 and R-E-—ME+-A=1+—H
1 January 2015: RZZ-RF-A—-H
Cost AR 34,782 12,228 5,160 11,696 63,866
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (6,633) (4,496) (3,435) (8,005) (22,569)
Net carrying amount FREFE 28,149 7,732 1,725 3,691 41,297
At 1 January 2015, net of W-_E-R%—f—-H"
accumulated depreciation Mk 2B E 28,149 7,732 1,725 3,691 41,297
Additions NE - - 165 1,761 1,926
Disposals HE - - - (515) (515)
Depreciation provided during ~ FRIFEEE (#76)
the year (note 6) (1,049) (802) (496) (1,622) (3,969)
Impairment (note 6) W& (Hit6) = (6,924) = = (6,924)
Exchange realignment [E 5 3% (102) (6) (50) (62) (220)
At 31 December 2015, N-E-RF+_R
net of accumulated =B HRZEFER
depreciation and impairment A 26,998 - 1,344 3,253 31,595
At 31 December 2015: RZB-RF+-A=1+—-1:
Cost AR 34,565 11,493 5,223 10,385 61,666
Accumulated depreciation and 2RI E KA
impairment (7,567) (11,493) (3,879) (7,132) (30,071)
Net carrying amount FREHE 26,998 = 1,344 3,253 31,595
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31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BENR®E (&)
(continued)
Furniture,
Land and Plant and  fixtures and Motor
buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles Total
TRk BER KL KE
BT e PE "E CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
31 December 2014 —E-ME+=-A=+-A
At 1 January 2014: RZE-WE-HF—R:
Cost AR 34,881 12,563 3,443 10,653 61,540
Accumulated depreciation Z2BIE (5,638) (2,989) (3,087) (6,220) (17,934)
Net carrying amount FEFaE 29,243 9,574 356 4,433 43,606
At 1 January 2014, RZE—MF—A—H 11k
net of accumulated 2RNE
depreciation 29,243 9,574 356 4,433 43,606
Additions RE - - 1,724 1,199 2,923
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERB AR (Hit0)
(note 40) - - 1 - 1
Depreciation provided during ~ ERNTERE (fi26)
the year (note 6) (1,041) (1,686) (352) (1,906) (4,985)
Exchange realignment TR (53) (156) (4) (35) (248)
At 31 December 2014, netof ~ RZZE—NF+-A
accumulated depreciation =B HREERE 28,149 7,732 1,725 3,691 41,297
At 31 December 2014: RIB-WET-A=+—H:
Cost A 34,782 12,228 5,160 11,696 63,866
Accumulated depreciation 2WENE (6,633) (4,496) (3,435) (8,005) (22,569)
Net carrying amount FHRE 28,149 7,732 1,725 3,691 41,297
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12.

AE+=-—A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Impairment of HK$6,924,000 (2014: Nil) was recognised
for plant and machinery because the knitting and
textile business has been loss-making in recent years.
The impairment has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by senior management
covering a five-year period. The discount rate applied to
cash flow projections is 15%.

Assumptions used in the cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of plant and machinery
are as follows:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent
with external information sources.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s building located
in Mainland China with net book value of HK$3,148,000
(2014: HK$3,542,000) was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 34(a)(i)).

12.

W% BENRE (&)

MRS BRESROBRFE—EB
1B OEE k25T R{E6,924,000
BT (ZF—0F &) ZREDHER
RARTRETR ﬁlJE‘JﬁﬁHFTEﬁ;tﬁﬁFg
FABFEDEARSRER B AN
hFHMBTEE - Ei//wiﬁ_ AP FE AR
ZHTIREH15% e

HmELE#SERENAZRE
BIFTER Z Rz T

s
/IE

BEEFF - BEENRZBERE
BEFEA—FMERNFHENEG
8 WHEEERM A= Mg o

B E — FRBZIFTRRTIRAMERRIA
I 2 BR G BRE B 8T 2 e AR o

FASE Rz 2 (BB B SMN AR B IB SRR — B »

R-E—FRE+-_A=+—80" @
F {E3,148,0008 L (= & — 10 4 ¢
3,542,000/ 7T ) 2 AN S B R B A
ZEFEDER  (FALER MR
EE 2R (H1iE34(a)0) »
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31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
2015 2014
—E—REF —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—RAZKRHE = -
Transfer from properties under ERBERPME
development 374,445 -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment A (&R FEF5E
(note 5) (K15#5) 757 -
Exchange realignment PE 8% 1,777) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEEE 373,425 -

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial
properties in Mainland China. The Group's investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2015 based
on valuations performed by &Y B &EEFEHER
A 7], independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$373,425,000. Each year, the Group’s chief financial
officer decides to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s chief financial
officer has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when the
valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which
are included in note 41(a) to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on page 201.

REENZREYEDERE AN A
ME - AEENREMENR_T—AF
T A=+ —BREHFYIPBEET
HERAT (BLBEEEERGERM) #&
1THY 15 (B &= £373,425,000 7T °
FAEBZYBHBERTEZ AN
BB BEEAEBIEE Y EEITINBM
BE-BEZREREMSENG B2 5
UMREBEEIFTEREKE - NEE
BRESFMASERTPARFENB
PR B AT (A R R A R st (A B R
F R HELERETEN -

BREMENREMERETFE =07 - £

—FRHBER M B HRERME41@) °

ERAAREEREMENE —LHFBIERN
F2018 o
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13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value

13. REWYE (&)
AR EERFE

TRINTAEEREMEN R FEF

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment =2ER
properties:
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using
R-B-RF+ZA=+-BEAUTRRETAFETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERT & EXTBE EXTUEE
H]RE BARE BARE
(B—&) (B=&) (B=&) G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
Recurring fair value TEHLATERE
measurement for:
Commercial properties EAME - - 373,425 373,425

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and

FRE-ARSE

— Rz BN ER

BERE TEEARBLE=-R (=T

—PHEE R e

AT REEMRGEMBOEETER

the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FEHASBIHE
Valuation Significant Range or
Techniques unobservable inputs weighted average
RERE EXTTBRGARE HEREMETIH
2015
—2-1F¥
Commercial properties Discounted cash flow method Estimated rental value HK$108 to HK$120
BRmE ReREER (per sq.m. and per month) 1088 TLE120/87T

st EEE (BT HARREA)
Rent growth (p.a.)

Mok (85F)

Long term vacancy rate
REEEX

Discount rate

FRE

2.5%

2%

5.6%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and
liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life including
an exit or terminal value. This method involves the
projection of a series of cash flows on a property
interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to
the projected cash flow in order to establish the present
value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and
differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing
of inflows and outflows are determined by events such
as rent reviews, lease renewal and related reletting,
redevelopment or refurbishment. The appropriate
duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic
cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease
incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission
costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end
of the projection period, is then discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental
value and the market rent growth rate per annum in
isolation would result in a significant increase (decrease)
in the fair value of the investment properties. A
significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy
rate and the discount rate in isolation would result
in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair value
of the investment properties. Generally, a change in
the assumption made for the estimated rental value is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
rent growth per annum and the discount rate and an
opposite change in the long term vacancy rate.

13.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

REWME (&)
DAVESHREE (&)

BRERRRSREE  RFELDERBR
REBEESTANEEMERARNKE
LaEETHT (BRELEERKR
BE) - ZESREMERRN —ER
REeRENTRR - MIHITENFTRERE
ARBEARSREANERIEEERH
Ml sERmIRE - RHRaR BT RES
REBTRRITEE o

BeRnEMNFERREMRABENRHE
WARBKEDHFNESR - BOE
BZELHEBENR ERHABHEELR
EoEENREREEMETA (BY
EERWM—ERE P& THRSR
ERBWEINKRZE  TARKER -
WHRBLK - MEEE  #EER K2
MEEALAMEEMNERER - &
—EERTEHELEWAFE - ERFEE RN
TR B AR 2 R h BEMET 5 - 3T
RERE -

BAHEEEATSHEFERRER
RIEE M O D) BEEIREMENRF
EAREIEM ORd) - RPEEXRIFTR
REBAEEN ORD) BEBREYE
M AFEAERD (M) - —KmME -
A HEEEFLENBRNES TR
HeFRERITRRBBABUTAE

MEFEMEEXTHRRAZ(LS/HE -
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14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. FEMSTHHEEN
2015 2014
—E—REF —ET—mF
HK$'000 HK$000
FETT FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—BZEEE 3,032 3,140
Exchange realignment M 54, 8 B8 (74) (34)
Recognised during the year (note 6) FAER (Hit6) (73) (74)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HAZEHEE 2,885 3,032
Current portion included in FTATBRIE e Kk
prepayments, deposits and E b IR ER A
other receivables TRENER D (71) (74)
Non-current portion FETRENER D 2,814 2,958
As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s leasehold land Ef:%—ﬁi-i—:ﬁﬁ] =t—B K&
located in Mainland China with net book value of # @2'885'090?% A
HK$2,885,000 (2014: HK$3,032,000) was pledged to 3,032,000870) ZASKELICF BP9
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group < HEELIEDER - FRARE—R

(note 34(a)(ii)). fE'T‘TM%EZ%{% (/}/7‘5}_34(8)0/)) °
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15.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5
31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-_A=+—H
15. EREE

Customer
relationship

EFBR
HK$'000
FET
31 December 2015 —E-HAF+=ZH=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of accumulated R-F—R&—A— B2 -
amortisation kR RAEEE S 570
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) FREkIEE M (Hfit6) (190)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+_A=1+—H 380
At 31 December 2015: R_E—RAFE+-_A=+—8:
Cost R AR 1,141
Accumulated amortisation RIEH (761)
Net carrying amount IREDFE 380
31 December 2014 —E-—MmME+=-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of accumulated R-Z—MNE—A—H 2K -
amortisation IR 27525 760
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) F NEHEE (f1:16) (190)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—WF+=—A=+—H 570
At 31 December 2014: R-ZE—NMF+-_A=+—8:
Cost B AR 1,141
Accumulated amortisation RIEH (571)
Net carrying amount ARIEHE 570
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16.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 16. SEAQAFZKRE
2015 2014
—E-REF —E—pE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 282,876 310,154
Goodwill on acquisition WIS PREE 2 & 7,745 7,745
290,621 317,899

The investment in a joint venture represents the Group's
right to enjoy certain economic benefits derived from
a 69.4% (2014: 69.4%) equity interest in CATIC
Siwei Co., Ltd. ("CATIC Siwei”) held by third parties
through trust arrangements. CATIC Siwei is registered
as a co-operative joint venture under PRC law and
is holding an investment in China which operates in
aero-technology business and in investment holding.

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that the
Group has the right to enjoy certain economic benefits
from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei, none of
the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral control
over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei pursuant to
the provisions in the articles and association of CATIC
Siwei. Since the Group does not have any power to
control the financial and operating activities of CATIC
Siwei, the directors consider it is appropriate to account
for this right as an investment in a joint venture using
the equity method of accounting as at 31 December
2015 and 2014.

The above entity was not audited by Ernst & Young,
Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

BERNRAZREEANEEER=ZEAE
= HBEBERTHRE 2 UMMz iE R
BRAR ([HAgEER]) 69.4% (ZF—
PUEF : 69.4%) RAHEZ 2 & TEEF
oo POMEERBEPBREFZMASEE
2 WP ERE L EM R ER
FIEEERZIZE o

EERA HARNEEHEB MK E R
69. 4% AN M E TLBE =R - |
REMOEERNAREREATE  BED
HERRRE UG ER R EEES
BT EEGIRE o RN B AR Y
HER TR EEY  ESRARE
HiLZBERAERSARE - WK =
T—RFER_E—NF+-A=+—H
TAEERRIZEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 16.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of CATIC Siwei adjusted for any differences

in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying

amount in the consolidated financial statements:

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

BERAZRE (&)
TRIEMGER L WBHEMRR (B
e BRZEMEREH AR LM
RAMBHRERANZREEETEHR) -

2015 2014
—E-EfF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents WehHeHE 15,058 60,284
Other current assets HMmshEE 163,000 214,996
Current assets mENEEE 178,058 275,280
Non-current assets ERFEE 353,185 243,435
Current liabilities mEBE (116,062) (53,124)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE (1,293) -
Net assets BEFE 413,888 465,591
Less: Net assets attributable to B SRR R RS
non-controlling interests BEFE (6,286) (18,683)
407,602 446,908
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HEAREBREENAERLZ
in the joint venture: HAR -
Proportion of the Group's ownership RNEE AR Z A 69.4% 69.4%
Group's share of net assets KEBEEEERAAZ
of the joint venture BEFE 282,876 310,154
Goodwill on acquisition WEEFTEE A 2 28 7,745 7,745
Carrying amount of the investment K& ZEREE 290,621 317,899
Revenue U %5 17,833 18,389
Interest income TR WA 1,091 4,282
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe ey (18,683) (19,453)
Interest expenses FERXZ = (2,110)
Tax Bi1E - (1,322)
Loss for the year REFGE (39,330) (34,338)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 mE _ _
Total comprehensive income for the year ANF2HEUNZEAAEE (39,330) (34,338)

o™

&
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES BENRIZRE
2015 2014
—E-EE S ItES
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Share of net assets DIHEEFE 13,792 204,321
Goodwill on acquisition W B P A 2 T 8,265 41,733
22,057 246,054
Less: Provision for impairment R E RS (8,091) (8,091)
13,966 237,963
Loans to associates — non-current ML N EIRENER —
FERED 40,120 18,750
Less: Impairment of loans to associates  Ji : B4 A AR H]
BERZRE (29,940) (18,750)
10,180 -
24,146 237,963
Loans to associates included AAREERBEE 2 MBE
in the Group’s current assets: NERMHER
Loans to associates — current M R RIRENER — RE - 68,000

Less: Impairment of loans to associates i : MM & A AR

BERZRE

- (68,000)

The loans to associates are unsecured and bear
interest at 4.5% to 6% (2014: 4.5% to 6.15%) per
annum. Included in the loans to associates are loans
of HK$29,940,000 (2014: HK$75,000,000) which have
convertible options allowing the Group to convert
the loans into ordinary shares of the associates at an
established conversion rate (i.e. RMB1 per share). In the
opinion of the directors, the fair values of the convertible
options do not have significant financial effect and were
therefore not recognised in these financial statements.

MEERNARENER D EE T
REFRISEREE (ZF — Y F:
45[F £6.15[F) 5 B 5 A M B &
NAREMOE RO TS ] R
B 329,940,000/ L (= & — I 4 :
75,000,000/ 7T) + A& B A LZEL E 81
B RNgRITARYE) BEREIR A
EARIZERR - EFERAE - ATRRE
ZATEITESRMBLE  BLEE
1L B 75 TR AR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The loans to associates which are not repayable within
one year were classified as non-current and were
included in the investments in associates. The loans to
associates which are repayable within one year were
classified as current and were included in the Group's
current assets.

As at 31 December 2015, impairment losses of
HK$29,940,000 (2014: HK$86,750,000) have been
recognised for the loans to associates. Impairment has
been recognised for loans to associates because the
associates have been loss-making in recent years.

The movements in the provision for impairment of the
loans to associates are as follows:

17.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

BERTAZRE (B)

BBR — I P IR 0 (1B R BIR (LA
BERDBERIRD B ABEAR 2R
& - AR —FEREEN B LA RRE
MERDBRRB A AREEZ

AE -

R—ZZETE—RHE+-_A=+—HB" ' 2
RABEARRENERERBE
/& 1829,940,000% o (Z & — 4 & :
86,750,000/ 7T) - AN ZFHE R AR
BAHF—EEE BSRRBE A 7R
HEEFERRE

U D ARG B 2 A (B
mT :

2015 2014

—E-EfF —E—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January nW—A—H 86,750 19,000

Exchange realignment PE W32 (3,217) (785)
Impairment loss recognised/(recovered) Z R/ (UgE) HEEE

(note 6) (K1a#6) (11,677) 68,535
Reclassified to other receivables BT A E A M ERER K

(note 25) (K17225) (41,916) -

At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 29,940 86,750

o=

&)
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31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

17.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17.

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

BMERNRZRE (&)
BARBE AR ZFBENOT :
Percentage

of ownership
interest

Particulars of registration attributable
Name issued shares held and business to the Group Principal activities
fisEe ML, rEEELES
Z8 BITROFE BN A-ES: EEZEILE FBEH
HFEEHRREAERALAF Registered capital PRC/Mainland China 45 Research and development
(MHEREEHR] ) of RMB1 each FE S HRE A of engineering technology
SEI1TARKR and electronics
HMER communication technology
TRl 2 & F B E e i
ik
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another * W3 2K E B LK B IR AR EL AR A

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BRAEZ -

FRIHEERREIBREARFEXRRA
FBRAEBEEFETERND 2AE
BEtE R  EFR DM ML
RAERH RN TR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
=BMRAT], because
the share of losses of the associate exceeded the Group’s
interest in the associate and the Group has no obligation
to take up further losses. The amounts of the Group's

of losses of an associate, 2 B RS ZE

unrecognised share of losses of this associate for the
current year and cumulatively were HK$15,051,000
(2014: HK$25,202,000) and HK$44,421,000 (2014:
HK$29,370,000), respectively.

During the year, the Group's equity interests in two
associates, AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (“AVIC
Joy”) and EBEMHMAREROER AR (" LEE
"), have been diluted and the Group no longer had
significant influence over them. As such, the Group's
investments in these two companies were reclassified
from investments in associates to available-for-sale
investments, and the Group discontinued to apply
the equity method to share the results and other
comprehensive income of these two companies. The
reclassifications were accounted for as disposals of
the entire interests in AVIC Joy and £ /& E’# and
re-acquisitions of the retained interests at their fair
values. As a result, an aggregate net gain on deemed
disposal of associates of HK$433,380,000 (2014:
HK$679,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year. Since then, the
fully-impaired loans to E/8EH were reclassified to
other receivables.

17.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

BEARZRE (&)
REED K IEERD LS AR 28
BM=BRARMEE - T8 NVE
ZEENR 2 EBEE e AN EERZE
ERRMER MASREEEEFEAE
HE—PEE - AEBARBRNENZ
BMERNAAFEBBESERRESHE
5 Bl &15,051,0008 70 (= ZT — PO 4F -
25,202,000/ 7T) %&44,421,000% T
—PO4E : 29,370,000/ 7T ) °

FR- AEERPBEBRES QA (FRE
i (B8) ARLAR ([E@8ER]) k£
5§§5ﬂi¥ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁiﬂﬂ ERAAE([E
Bl e wEE - BAKE
Tﬁﬁ’i\aglﬁﬁaﬁ AmEERTEN - A
bt AEERZME QA 2R E /B
M”TZ&é{é%ﬁ DEREAHEEN
?xéq i 725 62 B IR 4% 1 FE A R 5 0E R
DB AR Z EEREM2EK

e RBEMOBENERE  TEELEE
wEREEBEDz2MERLE
ARIEREZRBREATVEENE

A B Wi AHEHE QAR ZFE
4 #£433,380,0008 7T (— T — Y 4F :
679,000/ 70) ENAFEMNGZEEERRK

REER - Btk - 2EUREMN R LEED
REHEWEREF DB HMEUARK -
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31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

17.

18.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not
individually material:

17.

BEQNRZRE (&)

FRIFARBEREEABE AT 2
BEEBER -

2015 2014
i —T-MmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Share of the associates’ losses for the S {hEEL QT 7 NEEIE
year (41,337) (28,953)
Share of the associates’ other SMEBE AR 2 AR EKE
comprehensive income 16,028 (135)
Share of the associates’ total SIEEE R Rz 2 E WS B
comprehensive income (25,309) (29,088)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBREENT 2IRE 2
Group’s investments in the associates  BRE{E42%8 24,146 237,963
FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120  18. EC120lE ZBIK&EE

The balance represents the carrying value of the Group’s
interest in 80% of the interest of AVIC International
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company, in the net
income in relation to Project EC120, a jointly-controlled
operation established by AVIC International and certain
independent third parties, to develop, manufacture and
globally distribute the multi-purpose EC120 helicopters.

AVIC International’s net income derived from Project
EC120 is limited to AVIC International’s share of income,
net of all expenses, to be derived from its interest in
Project EC120.

BHREARNAZEIERTRBEMER
TR ERAERAE ([FREEK] B
EC12078 B FE&T 2 ) F A 280% % 2
BERRTE-ECI20EB 2 —HATM
BB A T = Ak 2 R EHE S
BH ZEARBAKIERAERE -
BLE N 2 HREHBECI200 %y 2 A% HE
FHig -

FAMEIER K BEC120IB B 2 /F WA IR
R EBEEECI20B B RMELS 2
IR ABFTERY ©
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18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120 18.

(continued)

The investment represents a contractual right to receive
cash in the future from another enterprise and has been
classified as a non-current available-for-sale financial
asset and stated at cost less any impairment losses
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that

its fair value could not be measured reliably.

As at 31 December 2015, the directors has made a full
provision for impairment of the value of the financial

asset and the cost less accumulated impairment losses of

the financial asset is analysed as follows:

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

EC120 BB 2 i EE (££)

ZENREBEERRR S —KEeERERSE
ZEHEN e BRI R AN
ENMBEE  BRAARREAEIRERS
B I EREE R EMRTZH
BiaX BESFR/BEASEAEER
FE -

R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H E%FE
BEZEMSEE CEBED2EURER
H MBEEIZAARBZEREBREZ
DWW -

HK$'000
FAET
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, RZZE—MF—H—H
1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015: —E2-mFE+-_A=+—H"
I i =D
“E-AF+-_A=+—H8:
Cost AR 39,759
Accumulated impairment RERE (39,759)
Carrying amount FREE =

o=
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AHEENRE
2015 2014
—E—REF —ET—mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
Non-current: IETE
Unlisted investments, at fair value: FEEMRE  BAFE
PMH Bonds (note (a)) XTBEERES (#i#@) 70,998 116,701
AVIC Joy Bond (note (b)) ERIERES (H5F0b)) 43,445 -
Club debentures SFIfES 2,290 5,070
116,733 121,771
Listed equity investment, ERAIERE - ZATFE
at fair value (note (c)) (Bi5E(c) 283,688 -
Unlisted equity investment, FELETRAIRE - BRAE
at cost (note (d)) (B15Ed)) = -
400,421 121,771
Current: TRE
Unlisted investment, at fair value: FELEHHRE » HATE
AVIC Joy Bond (note (b)) FERIERES (FiEb)) = 51,071

Notes:

Peace Map Holding Limited (“PMH") is a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. The convertible
bonds issued by PMH (“PMH Convertible Bonds”) held
by the Group are non-interest-bearing, convertible into
400,000,000 (2014: 664,000,000) ordinary shares of PMH
at HK$0.25 per share (subject to adjustment upon the
change in the capital structure of PMH) and will mature in
five years from the date of the issuance.

PMH Convertible Bonds are hybrid instruments that include
non-derivative host contracts and embedded derivatives.
The non-derivative host contracts, representing the bond
components (“PMH Bonds”), have been designated as
available-for-sale investments. The embedded derivatives,
representing the conversion options which allow the Group
to convert PMH Convertible Bonds into ordinary shares
of PMH at an established conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.25
per share), have been designated as derivative financial
instruments (“PMH Derivatives”) as detailed in note 20(a) to
the financial statements.

Bt

(a)

ATEERBRAR (TRXTEER]D
A-EERMRBXAMEm 2z A -
REEHBEZHARATEERETHA
BRESE (RTEERITRKRES]
TEHE - AR S AR0.25%8 T (B A &
ATEERERRE 2SS T IUAE)
& 4% 5400,000,0000% (=& — 4 4 -
664,000,0000% ) X T BI#Z MR 2 & i@AR -
BN TERRAEEIE -

ATEZERAIARES BB SIETET
BEFEHERBRARNTETIAZREAT
B ENETAZTANRERESBND
(TR TEERES]) - BiEE A4
HENEE - RARTETARKRAF
AN BIR BT E BIAE (BIEAR0.25%87T)
BRTEZBARBESERARTE
TR E B REE - BRIETE A
BTSRRI 20()R il 2 ST A SR T A
(TRTEZEBRATETAD
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19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

In the prior year, the Group had received PMH
Convertible Bonds from PMH with a principal amount
of HK$18,128,000 (note 20(c)) and from Broadlink
Enterprises Limited (“Broadlink”) with a principal amount of
HK$22,531,000 (note 20(d)).

During the year, the Group converted certain PMH
Convertible Bonds (“PMH Converted CB") with a principal
amount of HK$66,000,000 (2014: HK$117,250,000) into
264,000,000 shares (2014: 469,000,000 shares) of PMH
at the conversion price of HK$0.25 (2014: HK$0.25) per
share. On the date of the conversion, the market value of
the shares of PMH received was HK$120,120,000 (2014:
HK$93,331,000) while the fair value of the PMH Converted
CB was stated at HK$123,880,000 (2014: HK$118,009,000)
based on a valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer. A loss on derecognition
of HK$3,760,000 (2014: HK$24,678,000) was resulted.
At the same time, the corresponding fair value gain of
HK$8,573,000 (2014: HK$5,268,000) previously recorded in
the statement of comprehensive income was released from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve. As a
result, a net gain on derecognition of an available-for-sale
investment of HK$4,813,000 (2014: loss of HK$19,410,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of PMH Bonds was
stated at HK$70,998,000 (2014: HK$116,701,000) based
on a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value gain of HK$2,381,000
(2014: HK$16,018,000) in respect of PMH Bonds was
recognised as other comprehensive income for the year.

AVIC Joy is a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. The convertible bond issued by AVIC Joy (“AVIC
Joy Convertible Bond”) bears interest at 2% per annum, is
convertible into 225,112,487 (2014: 220,322,859) ordinary
shares of AVIC Joy at HK$0.23 (2014: HK$0.235) per share
(subject to adjustment upon the change in the capital
structure of AVIC Joy) and will mature in three years from
the date of the issuance.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

19. AHHENRE (&)

e - (&)
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BEFE  KAEEAXTEZERIEIZAR

©# /518,128,000 7T 2 K T B AT
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AR&54A22,531,0008 L2 K T BIIER
AR ES (Mit20(d)) -

FR AEERFR2SB T (ZF
—MF 0258 WEBRELELS
%8 /66,000,000 7T (= T — PO F :
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AR ES ([RTEZEREER R
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Z — Jq 4 : 93,331,000/ 7T) © M X
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& Bl A123,880,000/ 7T (= T — I
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REMEEKRERCDHE2ABEAFE
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EREFZATEREBYEESER
S E D17 2 B E 58 A70,998,000
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B RTEERES 2R FE

F 82,381,000%8 ;T (= T — I 4F :
16,018,000/ 70) RFNHERAEME
s -

(b) $zm% BE—HERORE XM ETZ
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19.

AE+=-—A=+—H

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

AVIC Joy Convertible Bond is a hybrid instrument that
includes a non-derivative host contract and an embedded
derivative. The non-derivative host contract, representing
the bond component (“AVIC Joy Bond"”),

designated as an available-for-sale investment. The

has been
embedded derivative, representing the conversion option
which allows the Group to convert AVIC Joy Convertible
Bond into ordinary shares of AVIC Joy at an established
conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.23 (2014: HK$0.235) per share)
before the maturity date of AVIC Joy Convertible Bond, has
been designated as a derivative financial instrument (“AVIC
Joy Derivative”) as detailed in note 20(b) to the financial
statements.

During the year, the maturity date of AVIC Joy Convertible
Bond was extended from 6 March 2015 to 6 March 2018
as agreed by the Group and AVIC Joy, and the conversion
rate was changed from HK$0.235 per share to HK$0.23
per share. On the date of the extension, the market value
of the new AVIC Joy Convertible Bond was HK$76,691,000
while the fair value of the original AVIC Joy Convertible
Bond was stated at HK$72,707,000 based on a valuation
performed by an independent professionally qualified
valuer. A gain on derecognition of the original AVIC
Joy Convertible Bond of HK$3,984,000 (2014: Nil) was
resulted. At the same time, the corresponding fair value
gain of HK$10,518,000 (2014: Nil) previously recorded in
the statement of other comprehensive income was released
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
As a result, an aggregate net gain on derecognition of an
available-for-sale investment of HK$14,502,000 (2014: Nil)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of AVIC Joy Bond
was stated at HK$43,445,000 (2014: HK$51,071,000)
based on a valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer, and a fair value gain of
HK$1,566,000 (2014: HK$3,729,000) in respect of AVIC
Joy Bond was recognised as other comprehensive income
for the year. AVIC Joy Bond was reclassified to non-current
asset during the year as a result of the extension of the
maturity date.

19.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(0

(d)

As detailed in note 17 to the financial statements, the
Group’s equity interest in AVIC Joy has been diluted during
the year and the Group’s investment in AVIC Joy was
reclassified to available-for-sale investment. This investment
was designated as an available-for-sale financial asset and
has no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

During the year, a fair value loss of HK$311,137,000 (2014:
Nil) in respect of the Group’s investment in AVIC Joy was
recognised as other comprehensive income for the year.

There was a significant decline in the market value of AVIC
Joy shares during the year. The directors consider that such
a decline indicates that the investment in AVIC Joy has
been impaired and an impairment loss of HK$311,137,000
(2014: Nil), which included a reclassification from other
comprehensive income of HK$311,137,000 (2014: Nil), has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year.

As detailed in note 17 to the financial statements, the
Group's equity interest in )& has been diluted during
the year and the Group no longer had significant influence
over it. The Group's investment in _E/8 T was reclassified
to available-for-sale investment. This investment was
designated as an available-for-sale financial asset and has
no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

As at 31 December 2015, the investment in /& B
was stated at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be
measured reliably. The investment was fully impaired. The
Group does not intend to dispose of it in the near future.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

19. AHHENRE (&)
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19.

AE+=-—A=+—H

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)
During the year, net fair value loss of HK$307,190,000

(2014: gain of HK$19,747,000),
respect of the Group’s available-for-sale investments

in aggregate, in

was recognised as other comprehensive income for the
year, of which fair value gain of HK$19,091,000 (2014
HK$5,268,000) and fair value loss, as detailed in note
(c) above, of HK$311,137,000 (2014: Nil), respectively,
were reclassified from other comprehensive income
to gain on derecognition and impairment loss in the
statement of profit or loss for the year.

The fair values of certain of the unlisted available-for-sale
investments have been estimated using valuation
techniques based on assumptions that are supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires
the directors to make estimates about the expected
future cash flows including expected future dividends,
the risk-free rate and the credit spread of the underlying
shares. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation techniques, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair value, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.

19.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TTE€mIA
2015 2014
—E—REF —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets: ETRHEE
PMH Derivatives (note (a)) KTEEZERITETAR
(Kiit@a)) 90,444 125,373
AVIC Joy Derivative (note (b)) ERERTELA
(K172 (b)) 29,452 -
119,896 125,373
Current assets: MENEE
AVIC Joy Derivative (note (b)) FRERITETLA
(K15 (b)) - 25,497

The Group's derivative financial instruments are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis. Any fair value gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments
have been estimated using valuation techniques based
on assumptions that are supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuations require the directors to
make estimates, including expected cash flows and
volatility of the underlying securities. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, are reasonable,
and that they are the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.
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20.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Notes:

(a) The PMH Derivatives represent the derivatives embedded
in PMH Convertible Bonds as detailed in note 19(a) to the

financial statements.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of PMH Derivatives
was stated at HK$90,444,000 (2014: HK$125,373,000)
based on a valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer, and a fair value gain of
HK$40,868,000 (2014: loss of HK$22,886,000) in respect
of PMH Derivatives was recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss for the year.

(b) AVIC Joy Derivative represents the derivative embedded
in AVIC Joy Convertible Bond as detailed in note 19(b) to
the financial statements. As at 31 December 2015, the fair
value of AVIC Joy Derivative was stated at HK$29,452,000
(2014: HK$25,497,000) based on a valuation performed
by an independent professionally qualified valuer, and a
fair value loss of HK$12,722,000 (2014: fair value gain
of HK$18,039,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year. AVIC Joy Derivative
was reclassified to non-current asset during the year as a
result of the extension of the maturity as detailed in note

19(b) to the financial statements.

(c) In the prior year, the Group had received PMH Convertible
Bonds with a principal amount of HK$18,128,000 (note
19(a)) as the deferred consideration for the disposal of its
entire 22.66% equity interest in Sinbo Investment Limited
(“Sinbo") and its subsidiaries which was completed in 2013.
The deferred consideration, designated as a derivative
financial instrument at initial recognition and stated at
its fair value of HK$23,843,000 as at 31 December 2013,
had been derecognised accordingly. The fair value of PMH
Convertible Bonds received amounted to HK$23,109,000
as at the date of receipt, based on a valuation performed
by an independent professionally qualified valuer, and a
fair value loss of HK$734,000 had been recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss for that year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

On 25 November 2013, the Group had entered into a
borrowing agreement with Broadlink, an independent
third party and a former shareholder of Sinbo, pursuant to
which the Group lent to Broadlink PMH Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$22,531,000. It had also
been agreed that on 31 July 2014, Broadlink might elect
to return to the Group either (i) PMH Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$22,531,000 together with
interest at 2.5% per annum in cash; or (ii) a lump sum of
HK$33,000,000 in cash. The consideration receivable from
Broadlink had been recognised as a derivative financial
instrument and stated at its fair value of HK$27,173,000 as
at 31 December 2013.

In the prior year, Broadlink had returned PMH Convertible
Bonds with a principal amount of HK$22,531,000 (note
19(a)) to the Group together with the interest. The fair
value of PMH Convertible Bonds returned amounted
to HK$24,189,000 as at the date of return, based on a
valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of HK$2,984,000 had
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for that year.

During the year, net fair value gain of HK$28,146,000
(2014: loss of HK$8,565,000), in aggregate, in respect
of the Group’s derivative financial instruments was

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss for the year.

20. fTE€RIA (&

Hiat - ()

(d)

FA-

RZTE—=F+—A=Z+HB K&
HBroadlink (— & B F =5 &
EMARR) FIZ—MHEERZE &
It » AN % @ [ABroadlinkf i A4 58 A
22,531,000 70 2 K T B35 i T #2 i &
FoBHNMETET RZT—NFLA=
+—H - Broadlink 7] 3% #2 [q) 7 & & (i) 57
BASE H22,531,0008 L2 X NEZ
FRARRES - ERRENE2 5EE
ZBeRE 5 (i)EZ I £33,000,000
BTz —RERIE - RZT—=F+=
A=+—8 " EkBroadlinkz KEE
HRATESRIAREAFEIER
27,173,000 7T °

BEFE - Broadlinkm AL BREAS
¥822,531,0004 7t (A1 7t19(a)) 2 R T
BlIER AR EHFEREBTE - KRB
BEXR BREZATEERITBRE
HZ RN FEBEBLBESEIREER
H1T 2 HE 524,189,000 7T AFE
E5182,984,0008 TR #Z FEiR A B =
RHER -

RAFRGABRRBERZAE

BEiTAem T A AFEFAN HRRE
£28,146,0008 7L (ZZF — U4 : BB
8,565,000/ 7T ) °
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21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND 21. BRYPYERBFELHEZETER
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE L
The analysis of the costs of the Group’s properties under AEEBMRFREZERTYERBED
development and completed properties held for sale EZETERYMEZRESTNT ¢
situated in the PRC is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FEIT
Properties under development TEERUR B 2 BEE AR 3
expected to be recovered:
Within one year — %R - 2,500,000
After one year —FEPAE 3,334,352 2,450,000
3,334,352 4,950,000
Properties held for sale BIEREZME 736,296 -
4,070,648 4,950,000
At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s properties R-ZZE-—NME+-_A=+—H  A&HE
under development with an aggregate carrying value BRE{EAE%582,450,000,000/8 T2 & F 3%
of HK$2,450,000,000 had been pledged to secure the BHEVELEER  (EAREE—RIR
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 34(a)(iii)). TTEEZ R (Ka34(03) i) »
22. INVENTORIES 22. FE&
2015 2014
—E-REF —E—pE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Raw materials R 930 1,058
Finished goods BIAY 3,634 1,797
4,564 2,855
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES EWREZSERERREE
2015 2014
—E—REF —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade and bills receivables U E 5 BRI N =R 188,763 24,740
Impairment B (11,685) (5,361)
177,078 19,379

Less: Trade receivable, B RINE FERFR

non-current portion ERBE S (21,628) -
Current portion MENER D 155,450 19,379

The Group has different credit policies for different
business operations depending on the requirements of
the markets and businesses in which the subsidiaries
operate. The Group’s trading terms with its customers
for the knitting and textile business and for the trading
business are mainly on credit, except for new customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period is generally one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. Trade receivables from sale of
properties in respect of the property development and
investment business are payable pursuant to the terms
of sale and purchase agreements.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBTRBHEB ZEEBRETR -
TIBORR TSR R EMBARMEE
X AEBEHBLOBEBLES
EBZEPZEERIIEZARE
HHEPHRIN TEP—RBEZREAN
H) o EEH-RAE—EA BREEE
FRZEHE={A  BuEFHERA
RAEERE VMERRMEEKZ
HEMEZRKRESEAIIREBEESA
HBRRER -

REBBKE KRB R Z BB RRMEFTR
REE  -EESETHRABHER -
ENIA Pt R AN E 7 RIE 5 R
MEBDRKEARESHRZEFPNER
At W EEREERTEAR - NEHEIL
B ERWE SR SR B EE
HRAEMEERE - BRBEZIERYL
BEETENE -
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23.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of provisions, is as follows:

23. EBUWESRIRERE (£)

RBEHR  BREZERRFZELE
SEHRMEREE RO

2015 2014

=F-HF —FOF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within 1 month —@EARA 168,800 13,973
1 to 2 months —Z=MEA 1,184 1,535
2 to 3 months —=={dA 2,858 561
Over 3 months BB =18H 4,236 3,310
177,078 19,379

The movements in the provision for impairment of the

EUEZFEFREREZREREBEZ I

trade and bills receivables are as follows: T
2015 2014
—E-REF —ZE—E
HK$'000 HK$7000
FHET FET
At beginning of year F ) 5,361 941
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) B MERBERE (H/it6) 6,871 4,371
Exchange realignment PE 5 (547) 49
At end of year FR 11,685 5,361

Included in the above provision for impairment of
trade and bills receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade and bills receivables of HK$11,685,000
(2014: HK$5,361,000) with the same carrying amount
before provision. The individually impaired trade and
bills receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties or were in default in principal payments and
are not expected to be recovered.

AALBERE SRR REE ZBER
HERERERNDRECERE SRR X
Zig 7 B 511,685,00008 7 (ZZ — M
£ :5,361,000/870) - BEER 2 RE
BEAER - BREREZERESERK
SBY RERM RS BRI HK
ZEF - BTEEZERERFCTATIE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that
are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

23. BEUWESRIRERE (£)

AEARARERNXBREREZEKE S
EREZERZERESITOT -

2015 2014

=F-HF —FOF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Neither past due nor impaired A EA K R E 169,984 15,508
Less than 1 month past due wmER LR —ER 2,858 561
1 to 3 months past due mH—==1EA 4,236 3,310
177,078 19,379

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

RBPIFRREZBREERS RRZZ
THEEF  ZBEFPUBESMENES -

B 28 B i R OB (B 2 R R T8 e R %
BAEEBRAERFBECHZBYR
F-REBELR ARREFRE
EAL % FREBIELE IR ERE
EEEERBEEAEPEERBINER
AR 2 ERYLE]
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24,

LOANS TO RELATED COMPANIES 24. MEBEEASIEHNER
As at 31 December 2015, the loans to related companies R-E—FHE+—_A=4+—H " mEH
included the loan to 23k (b)) BRIBER AR (“ 58 AERENEREERSHEER ()
2Ik"), an associate of an intermediate holding company, BREERAD (52| —B PR
which is unsecured, bears interest at 6.15% per annum EIRATIZHBENT) BHOBER A
and is repayable within one year (2014: unsecured, bears MK IREF K6 15EHBERER—
interest at 6.15% per annum and is not repayable within ERNEE (DT —NE: EIKE . HF
one year); the loan to It RESFERXBREELRA (b FIR6I1SESFERBAR—FNEE)
FR5FNE"), a subsidiary of the joint venture of the Group, RN Y ol o GBI Ll
which is unsecured, bears interest at 6.15% per annum ERHYAREEAT ([drRmpsmiE |) 18
and is repayable within one year (2014: unsecured, bears HEHEDR - AEIEM . HERN X6 158
interest at 6.15% per annum and is repayable within one HFERER—FREERE (ZE—F:
year); and the loan to b/BEHESESRMARAR MK - IRENKRCASEFERAR —
(" E/BIEREE 5 "), an associate of the joint venture of the ERNES): REAEERLSLAT 2B
Group, which is unsecured, bears interest at 5.25% per BRI EEBME S ZERMEARA T
annum and is repayable within one year (2014: Nil). (I EEEKRE S ) BEHMNEZ  AEK
A RFEMNKS 5B B RAR—FA
BE (ZT—mF &) -
In the prior year, the loans to related companies also BAEE MBEBRAREEONEZTIS
included the loan to Peace Map Co., Ltd. (“Peace Map”), FERAEEASL AT vHBHLATHEREK
an associate of the joint venture of the Group, which TERZERMTERAT (X TE ) 24
was unsecured, bore interest at 6.15% per annum and HMEXR 5EEE . REF K 15E
was repaid during the year. ENMERERES -
Particulars of loans to related companies, disclosed WIEBFB A TED ($622F) 5383(1)
pursuant to 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies (ERBZABEATIRENE TGS
Ordinance (Cap. 622), are as follows: #HolmT -
At Maximum
Maximum 31 December amount
At amount 2014 and outstanding At
31 December outstanding 1 January during the 1 January
2015  during the year 2015 prior year 2014
RZE-MF
tZA=t+-H
R-B-1F Frgs  R-F-DF BAFERE  KR-T-MF
tZA=t-H AEEER -A—-H AEESR -A-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET AT TET TATL
HHRIR HRER 16,272 18,750 18,750 19,028 -
Peace Map ATE = 18,750 18,750 19,211 19,108
L REME St RBNE 958 1,000 1,000 1,025 1,019
LEERES LEERER 11,976 11,976 - - -
29,206 38,500 20,127
Less: Non-current portion I (11,976) (18,750) (20,127
Current portion RBHH 17,230 19,750 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

ANRIE - BERHEMERRNK

2015 2014

—E-1% —FlF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Prepayments B A 50,530 1,174,932
Deposits and other receivables B REMEARER 85,376 72,326
Impairment B (73,914) (38,880)
61,992 1,208,378

Less: Prepayments, non-current portion & : JEfTEIE - IEREEH (278) (3,765)
Current portion mENE D 61,714 1,204,613

Deposits and other receivables that were not impaired
related to receivables for which there is no recent history
of default.

Included in prepayments as at 31 December 2014
was a prepayment for acquisition of land for property
development for sale amounting to HK$1,025,000,000,
which was transferred to properties under development
during the year.

Included in deposits and other receivables as at 31
December 2014 was a receivable of HK$20,150,000
which was secured by a 100% equity interest in
a company wholly-owned by the borrower, an
independent third party, which was settled during the
year.

W AR B Z & N B R W BR
BT IE HOJE SE R R URARSK

Y&

R_E—NFE+_A=+—H8 "  Bfx

BIERE T HIEMERBEE 2N
5XIE1,025,000,000/8 7T + s BEERF
NEZEREPYE -

—mOF+ZA=+—H E&k
ﬂﬂFEH&zHE X B HE FE U BR 720,150,000
CRERWERRTIAME S (— 2B
NE=F) 2EHEBZRAEZ100%KAEK
IR WEDRERNES °

%m}r,tni?%
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31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of
prepayments and other receivables are as follows:

BARE - RE Rk H R RIRK
(%)

TELF SRR e HL A B M B 0 2 LA S
HOT

2015 2014

=F-HF —FOF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FEIT

At beginning of year F4) 38,880 -
Reclassified from loans to an associate BRI E A FHRENER

(note 17) BB (WiF17) 41,916 -
Impairment losses recognised/ BRER S (BE) REFBRE

(reversed) (note 6) (H1:£6) (6,152) 39,015

Exchange realignment PE WA (730) (135)

At end of year FR 73,914 38,880

Included in the above provision for impairment of
prepayments and other receivables is a provision for
impaired prepayments to suppliers of HK$15,331,000
(2014: HK$16,748,000) and prepayments for
an investment project of HK$18,271,000 (2014:
HK$20,876,000), and a provision for individually
impaired other receivables of HK$40,312,000 (2014:
HK$1,256,000), with the same carrying amounts
before provision. Both the impaired prepayments to
suppliers and for the investment project arose from the
knitting and textile business. The impaired prepayments
to suppliers relate to suppliers that are in financial
difficulties and are not expected to be recovered. The
prepayment for the investment project was impaired
as, in the opinion of the directors, its cost exceeded its
recoverable amount.

Il TR A FRIE R L R UK BR SR 2 R B
HEEEREBE G THERN 2BNKIE
Z % 4%15,331,0008 T (Z T — L4 :
16,748,000 7T) ~ IR EIHE 2 BN FIA
2 B %18,271,00008 L (= — 4 -
20,876,000/ 7T) « ARERIERIEZE
i & U BR 3R 2 #E #840,312,0008 7T (=
T — P04 : 1,256,000/ 70) © BB AT
ZEREEMRR - BREZATHER K
KEBB ZENFKEHES AR
BE® - BRECHE THER BN
B REER SR 2 HER - B
FArggE - A EE BN REERESR
HRESRAHRENABEHEWE &
BIRAE -
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27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE 26. RAFEIFTABRZBRERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2015 2014
—E—REF —E—O4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed equity investment, FHRAKRE - EhE
at market value 285,713 166,797
The above equity investment is managed and its FHBEARIEE TR AFEEEEE
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The FEMNERAFEREETE - XEBRY
Group designated this investment as a financial asset at FTHRREEZRE /R A TEFAE
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. WM EE -
During the year, the Group converted certain PMH FR - AEEEBETRXTEZERIT®R
Convertible Bonds into ordinary shares of PMH. Further [REHFAERTEIZER L @A - E—P5F
details are included in note 19(a) to the financial ISE R SRR EE19(a) °
statements.
PREPAID TAXES 27. FEAMABIE
2015 2014
—E-1F —T—HEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
&t F#ET FHET
Prepaid LAT FEf LB (ERL (i) 12,156 88,020
Prepaid corporate income tax TEfT R EEPTEH
("crr) ([1EmEH]) (ii) - 32,961
12,156 120,981
Notes: Bisr
(i) Balance represents LAT prepaid for the property (i) ERIERIBERERM AR 2R —
development and pre-sale of properties by a subsidiary EMBATBETYERRE RTEEMEN
according to the instructions by the local tax bureau in the B+ Hh IR (E R o
PRC.
(i) Balance represents CIT prepaid for the pre-sale of properties (i) ERIERIBETBRM AR 2R —
by a subsidiary according to the instructions by the local tax BB AR EEMEMBMNNTEMS

bureau in the PRC. i o
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28.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME
DEPOSITS

28.

ReRReEEURERER

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAETT FET
Time deposits FHITE = 12,335 704,469
Less: Pledged short term time deposits  J& : BLEHIRITIEE
for short term banking facilities T LA 2 52 5
(note 34(a)(iv)) E HTF R
(B1aE34(a)iv)) (359) (375)
A time deposit with original PEVG R EE B BB
maturity of more than three =@AAZEBEFER
months when acquired - (155,588)
11,976 548,506
Cash and bank balances Be MIBTER 461,354 544,855
Cash and cash equivalents WehResE 473,330 1,093,361

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$120,275,000
(2014: HK$572,870,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RBEHRER AEBUARE AR
B AHEC RS RBTETRESRT
X A120,275,0008 7T (ZF — 1 4 -
572,870,000/ ) - AR TAIBME
RAEEME  RAMREP B A2 SN
EERGOIRERE SERNESTER
T AKEREBERERRINE KR
EBZRITBARBLBAHME -

RITFERLEARITERMEFENF
FHEGFE - BFAKENNKREF
Ko BENF—BAE-FE R[N
RHEHREFR  WREWEHERFR
MEF R - RITHETFREHRFHEER
RET BE RE £ BEERE ZIRTT -
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29.

30.

31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

BALANCES WITH AN INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due to an intermediate holding company is
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has no fixed terms
of repayment.

The loans from an intermediate holding company are
unsecured, bear interest at 10% per annum and are not
repayable within one year (2014: Nil).

BALANCES WITH FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

Except for an amount due from a fellow subsidiary of
HK$3,178,000 (2014: Nil) which is repayable on 31
January 2017 and included in non-current asset, all
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and repayable within one year.

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

The loans from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured and
bear interest at 10% (2014: 8% to 10%) per annum. As
at 31 December 2014, the loans from a fellow subsidiary
of HK$975,000,000 were secured by a non-controlling
shareholder’s equity interest in a subsidiary.

The loans from a fellow subsidiary which are not
repayable within one year were included in the Group's
non-current liabilities. The loans from fellow subsidiaries
which are repayable within one year were included in
the Group’s current liabilities.

29.

30.

31.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

ENBARZFERRR &6

RAEHRERR - A EREEEEE
HARR -

BREEZER AT Z &8

FEAH AR R FZ AR RIRIR R AR - 5T
SRERETEEEBRR

REFEERARNERAEIKE - %
FRERIOEFBERBAR —FRNEE
TEUE M) o

HERANB AR ZEE
BRENR-_ZTE—+tF—A=+—HEEL
AR EEZRRARZRWE QA
XIE3,178,000% 70 (=& — U4 : #%)
SN BT FEUL R R M B A A SR IE B IR
A THEEER—FREE -

FERT B R B QR FIAREER - &t
EREREFEEEDRR -

RKERZXHMBRARANERAEER - 1%
FREI0E (ZE—HF : BEE10E)
PR RZE—mMFE+=ZA=+—8"
kB R ZEHK B A B E 3975,000,000
BILTIAZ A RN EM B A Rz FEE Ak
MR AR A R e VEHE AR o

BEAR—FREEZXRARRKERF
MERFTARNKEERBAE - BR—
FREEZRARFRZME QR NERGT
AREERBALE
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32.

33.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 32.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,

ENEZERRREE

RBERK > BHESERRRERIZE
SEHZERERAITAT -

is as follows:
2015 2014
=F-HF —FOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within 1 month —@EARA 80,197 3,016
1 to 2 months —Z=MEA 2,307 1,620
2 to 3 months —=={dA 1,841 1,000
Over 3 months BiB=18H 8,013 2,859
92,358 8,495

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms.

ZERMNE SRR T B R —&RI%90
AHRIBE -

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. BitENSERESER
2015 2014

—E-afF —E—E

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FAET

Other payables H Ath fE T 5RI8 18,416 2,913
Accruals E:tER 14,328 53,170
32,744 56,083

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

Hi e RIBT A B R FEER A=
@A -
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34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 34. FFERITER
2015 2014
—E-5f —T-WF

Effective Effective

interest interest

rate (%) Maturity HK$'000  rate (%)  Maturity  HK$'000

BERFI= BRAI=

(%) 38R FHET (%) k= FHET
Current; mE
Bank loans - secured RITEH — BER 5.88-7.275 2016 37,964 6.6-38.1 2015 39,625
Non-current: R :
Bank loans - secured RITEN — BER - 6.46 2016 665,061
Notes: et -
(a) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s banking facilities (a) RZZE—RAF+-_A=+—8 &x%£E
were secured by: ZBITEEA TS BIERER -

(i) a pledge of the Group’s building in Mainland (i) RN = B BR EFE 3,148,000
China with net book value of HK$3,148,000 (2014: L (ZZ— M4 : 3,542,000
HK$3,542,000) (note 12); B 2N BRI BT (F

i#12)

(ii) a pledge of the Group’s leasehold land in Mainland (if) R 5 B AR HE1E 2,885,000
China with net book value of HK$2,885,000 (2014: B (ZZF—MM4F : 3,032,000
HK$3,032,000) (note 14); BIT) 2R BN HE i

(MiiE14)

(iif) pledges of certain of the Group’s short term (ifi) AR K& E A #359,0000
time deposits amounting to HK$359,000 (2014: 7T (= Z — g & : 375,000/
HK$375,000) (note 28); and TU) ZETREBESRER (Wi

28) &

(iv) pledges of certain properties owned by a director (iv) KB —HHBRARZES -
of a subsidiary, his spouse, his spouse’s family HECE - ERBZREKER
member and his acquaintance. AAPHAZETHE -

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group's properties RZZ-—ME+-_A=+—H &&EH

under development with an aggregate carrying value of 8 [ {8 48 %82,450,000,0005% T 2 & T

HK$2,450,000,000 had also been pledged to secure the BRAMETDER  (EAREERTT

Group's banking facilities (note 21). EEZER (Hi721) -

As at 31 December 2015, a director of a subsidiary, the RZE—RAF+=—A=+—80  —fHEK

spouse of the director, the spouse’s acquaintances and the BRARZEERZES ZEME - ZEMB

companies controlled by the acquaintances have guaranteed ZANEBHZERNES 2 RERAE
repayment of certain of the Group’s bank borrowings E %= #023,952,0008 7T (ZZ — 44 :
amounting to HK$23,952,000 (2014: HK$30,000,000). 30,000,000 7T) 2 & FRITER ZE
BIREIER -
(b) All bank borrowings are denominated in RMB. (b) FIBIRITEEHUARKEEH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt s
31 December 2015 —E—RF+-_A=+—H

35.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities

and assets during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

EEHBRE

35. EZEFHIE

gk -

AEEEEHBARBEREERFAZE

Fair value
adjustments
Revaluation of arising from
investment acquisition
properties of subsidiaries Total
W BB B A T
EEMN
REMEZEM AT ERARE &t
HK3$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2014 RZE—FE—A—H - 981 981
Deferred tax credited to the ~ FRFFABRERZ
statement of profit or loss EERIE (Wat10)
during the year (note 10) - (123) (123)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHT B R R (M5£40)
(note 40) - 261,725 261,725
At 31 December 2014 and R-ZE—NE+=-A
1 January 2015 e = B T S
—HR—H - 262,583 262,583
Deferred tax charged/ ERHEK(GEA)
(credited) to the statement BRERZIELTE
of profit or loss during (Kist10)
the year (note 10) 189 (66,385) (66,196)
Exchange realignment IR (7) (9,179) (9,186)
Gross deferred tax liabilites HRZ-Z—H%F+_-A
at 31 December 2015 =T —HZEERIE
BERE 182 187,019 187,201
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35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%
31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-_A=+—H

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The movements in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities
and assets during the year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax assets

35. EERIE (&)

R - (48)

Losses available

for offsetting

AEBEECHBERBEREERFAZE

Provision against future
for LAT  taxable profits Total
AT 85 AR 3R
PERRBE % F
TR EREE ZER &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000
TFET TFET TFET
At 1 January 2014 RZE—mMFE—H—H - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB B AR (f12E40)
(note 40) - 44,030 44,030
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE—MF+=A4
1 January 2015 =+—8k
—E—hF—H—H - 44,030 44,030
Deferred tax credited/ FRFTA(HBR)
(charged) to the statement BamRk2BELERIE
of profit or loss during (Kiat10)
the year (note 10) 6,002 (4,914) 1,088
Exchange realignment PE X 3 & (216) (1,668) (1,884)
Gross deferred tax assets RZE—RF+=A
at 31 December 2015 =t+—HZELEHIE
BEMTE 5,786 37,448 43,234

o=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt s
31 December 2015 —E—RF+-_A=+—H

35.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of
the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

35. EERIE (&)

APET AT EEHEAERAR
ERESIRA R EI - AT ARRE
2SRRI B 45 R (e
1

2015 2014
—E-&F —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE MER AR ER L
in the consolidated statement RERIAE BT RR
of financial position 9,685 -
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised G E M EAA N FRIERZ
in the consolidated statement EEIBEEFE
of financial position (153,652) (218,553)
(143,967) (218,553)

At 31 December 2015, the Group had aggregate
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$15,456,000 (2014: HK$15,456,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose and
tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$528,000
(2014: HK$718,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in the companies that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H ' =&
SEEERELECCHEBRBAEY
#15,456,000%8 T (= T — MM %
15,456,000 7T) + A 4R B A {E4E 68 i
BEBARZARRERBEF « fH
Wi E 4 2 BB E18528,0008 T (=F
—PUE 718,000 L) - IR —ERF
NAEREARRERTET - ARZE
BERERFHATLABEZAR  mMA
W3R AP RETS FE SR B s A LA L B) A ¢
BEE BT ERREERHIEEE -
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35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rates range from 5% to 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2015, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
venture and associates established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries, joint venture and associates will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. As at
31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences of approximately HK$346,729,000 (2014:
HK$294,408,000) is associated with investments in
subsidiaries, joint venture and associates in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

35.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

ELEBRE (2)

RIFEFR B EEEHE - B A A
SMZINERERIEEEETIR ZRE
AEKI0%TENT - ZHER_ZZE
NEFE—A—BREM BARZZTZT+L
FHZA=t+—HABz2HE - WPERA
BN 3 B A 2 AR R T B B U
E A AIERARK ZEIRE - $AE
Eims  EANER%EI0% - A&
ERE A AT R A2 KB A A
REZEENF-A—BREEZKE
Bk 2 A% BAFETEHOR -

R-ZZE—HFE+-A=+—H TEHR
AEBEFBEAMKALZHBEAR &
EWNCIDNE AN rde N Ry iy ]
ZEMBRRECHIE - EFRR - &
ZRWBLAR - A2 QA LBEQRTTK
EUARBERDIREZENRE - RZT—
FFE+ZA=+—H HARRFEA
Mo MBAR - EERFIRBE QR
BREBMRCEEREAEBCHRIKERES
H#)5346,729,00087C (= —PO4F ¢
294,408,000/87T) °

A A A R K B 2 B S P S R A

=z
= °
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31 December 2015 ZZ—hF+=A=+—H
36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. WA
Shares
dn)
2015 2014
—E-RF —H&
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Authorised: JARE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,0008% &I TH &
of HK$0.10 each 0.108 T2 Bk 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER :
5,519,591,000 ordinary shares 5,519,591,0008 G A% B
of HK$0.10 each 0108 T &M 551,959 551,959
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share RARBETRAES MO T -
capital is as follows:
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
ERTRH
£ e ERTRA REERE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
1 January 2014 RZE-mE—H—H 4,619,591,000 461,959 164,477 626,436
Issue of shares BITRA 900,000,000 90,000 450,000 540,000
Share issue expenses HRER - - (5,397) (5,397)
At 31 December 2014, E mFE+—_R=+—H"
1 January 2015 and —hE-A-BRk
31 December 2015 —E-RF+=-A=1+—H 5,519,591,000 551,959 609,080 1,161,039
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36.

37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

In the prior year, pursuant to a share placing and
subscription agreement, Tacko International Limited,
an existing shareholder of the Company, placed
900,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.60 per
placing share to not less than six independent placees,
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are third
parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons, and subscribed for 900,000,000 new ordinary
shares (“Subscription Shares”) issued by the Company
at the same price, raising in aggregate HK$540,000,000
(before share issue expenses) in cash to provide for
general working capital for the acquisition of a property
development and investment business and the daily
operations in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group. After taking into account the share issue
expenses of approximately HK$5,397,000, the net price
per Subscription Share issued was about HK$0.594.
The closing price of the Company’s share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on 16 December 2014, being the
date of the share placing and subscription agreement,
was HK$0.67 per share. This transaction resulted in an
increase of the issued share capital and share premium
account of HK$90,000,000 and HK$450,000,000
respectively. Share issue expenses of HK$5,397,000 were
charged to the share premium account accordingly.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the
business development and growth of the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees
and attract or retain human resources that are valuable
to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled
or outstanding thereunder as at 31 December 2015.

36.

37.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

R (&)

BAFE  BEROEERRBEHE
RAF—ZEFHKETacko International
Limitediz & #%0.60/8 7T & & A A 2
900,000,0000% & i@ A% A% 7 B & T 1~ 2
RABBILFARA (REARESEZ
BREBEREBALBBIRARNRRE
BEATHNEZN) TUARE F‘&.m
8 7K A B #5177 2900,000,000/% 7 I

AR Az 1n ([REEAR D) » FTi5 Iﬁuém
#2%E540,000,00058 7T (K aﬁ’éﬂxﬁﬁm
DERAEBR —REEES  ARX
MIE - EERRIREEBZRASE
EREXEBHNBEEEE - Z<<<D+&§§Hx§
F3 #95,397,000/8 T 1% BEITR
B GH FEBL 7,%0.594;‘%‘57_5 o & A
ZE-WNWE+ZRA+H (AIERERR
BiHzAH) CHXAARKTEASSE
%om%ﬁoai%ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
% 153 % 1E B %5 5135 AN90,000,0007% 7T K&
450,000,000/%7—1 ° 5,397,000/ T Z %
& & R IMEEMA IR (0 R B AR -

BRETE

RZE—NFRAZTNARITZRE
BERgE  RNQBRMNT —ABERE
& ([ZErEl]) EMAHAER %
BEREKRELERMZGERSREE
RS R N ERE - LA AR B R SRS
BHEEBIUWSISNHBHAEEAFE
B2AA - BERMZEEIAR - RZF
—RAF+ZA=+—8H  BMEREZ
B - 176 R FEEIERITE
2B -

@
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31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
incentives to the participants.

The participants of the Scheme are any individual
being employees, officers or consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including
any executive or non-executive directors thereof
whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of
the world.

The total number of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under any
other share option schemes of any member of the
Group, must not in aggregate represent more than
10% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of adoption of the Scheme. The
Company may refresh this 10% limit at any time
subject to prior approval given by its shareholders
at a general meeting. The overall limit on the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme, together
with all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under any other share option schemes of
any member of the Group, must not exceed 30%
of the total number of the Shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of any member of the Group if such grant will
result in the said 30% limit being exceeded. As at
the date of this annual report, the total number of
securities available for issue under the Scheme is
461,959,100 Shares, representing approximately
8.37% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the Shares in issue as at the proposed grant date.

37.

BRESTE (2

ZET Bl EBIRRBHE

ZAT 8 g RS EmE R -

ZatBlz2HBERBRNRNAHEME
AfEARAER BRI RS E
AZEE "EBEXERSE
AL BREREMATIIERT
B%-

ETEREZTSREZATERE
fetE  ERBBEAEEETMAKE
A B R AT AA] E b BE AR A A IR
ZABBEREmMAEETZAA
A H (TRRD]) B8 T3
BRZFTERME BB BTRG
BHEZ10% - KQAAAERE
FZI0% LR HEAERBRERK
G rERERLE - AITER
BRZiraREmERITEZRE
MARITEREIRE - ERITERE
AEBIMKE QRN TMEM
R R E M RITE 2 A
BRARITEBEREMAIEETZ
R - TEBBTEE T
B 15 48 8h 2 30% © it 1B 15 3% 5t
B R RE BT MK B QR I M
Eh BE IR RE AT B T RS AR A HE B
SEBE EAi30% 2 ER 0 BIAT
BB E - NAFREE R
B a BB ITEFEEA
461,959,1000% « #8 & K A& F W
HEAE BT (DB 2 498.37% °

PER+ =@ A BBERITE R &
AT B R AN B {A] E A B AR AE
FrEIE M RZTEIETSEE
BER2HEERD ZBEBRE (Tm
BAITfE - B ARITE) @
BB TERTZBROBE T
SHAEZZFETLAHEEITRMD
BEZ1% ©
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37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
5.

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date which
the Board may determine at its discretion but such
date shall not be earlier than three months after
the date of the grant of such option is made.

An option granted shall remain open for
acceptance by eligible participants for a period
of 28 days from the date of the grant of such
option together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

The exercise price of an option shall be the
highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

(o) the nominal value of the Shares.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 28 May
2014 and thereafter for as long as there are
outstanding options granted and accepted
pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the
said 10-year period and in order to give effect to
the exercise of any such options.

Share options did not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of
approval of these financial statements, there were no
share options outstanding (2014: Nil).

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

37. BRESE (&)

5. BRETREZEZGHRRA
ExeANBEETHAS (HEME
AR SENERERER
BHIR=EA) £ +FHHER
PERSTTHE

6. REBRENE L B %288
AR HEeERSmERE
o WA SRR B FIE1.00
BT

7. BERBZTEEA/STIIZES

&

() MRERERLAH (AR
BXER) BT HRE
RS2 WTE

(b)) REXBRERD (RE

E) BERTREE XA
KRB A RERMD
ZBAFHETE K

(0  B{pE(E-

8. ZEtElm—E-mWEFERA TN
HEF+tFHEARLAN N
ML+ RERIE R R
B2 AT TIERBBAR D AITTE -
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_F=+—H
38. RESERVES 38. fRE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements AEERRNFERBTFE RHERERME
therein for the current and prior years are presented HEHEN AN FHRES2AEFES58 2R
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on EEmBERA -
pages 52 to 55 of this annual report.
Pursuant to the articles of association of certain subsidiaries BIEE TR B A LASNE (b2 7 R A
operating as foreign-owned enterprises in Mainland China B HBRRzARERKEEFTEHA
and the relevant PRC Company Law, the subsidiaries ALER] - ZEWB AR AKERBE R
shall make an allocation from their profit after tax at the FZ10%BEEFRES - Eiﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
rate of 10% to the statutory surplus reserve fund, until HBEEZSEWBERAAGMELR250% °
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the HOEERAESA BT ABZEMBE QR
subsidiaries. Part of the statutory surplus reserve may be Z‘E\Iﬂﬁﬁ$ CHEHTEERE ZHBT
capitalised as the subsidiaries’ registered capital, provided ST PR ZERBRARFAMERZ
that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not 25% ° EERBBEBRZEMBARIKLE
less than 25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. REEFHEEBF RN -
The statutory reserve will be reclassified to retained profits
upon the disposal of the subsidiaries.
39. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 39. BFERFEREZZHIZEWE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS NG|
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material BEERFERESRASEME QG
non-controlling interests are set out below: BIRENT
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-F
Percentage of equity interest held by KiBEMMEIEIERER T AN
non-controlling interests of A& fi RAERA L 47.92% 47.92%
2015 2014
—E-RE —H&
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Profit for the year allocated to 3 BE T ARG AT EE SRR AR
non-controlling interests of K:EME  #Em 2 ANFiRF 48,775 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling BT R M EE SRR AR i 2
interests of A% IR = -
Accumulated balances of RS A B R
non-controlling interests of AGEME  FEPERiER 2R EH
at the reporting dates 611,218 589,189
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%
31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-_A=+—H

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 39.
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts

BERFEREEZHZEME
DA (&)

R LB R R R B S B R R
£ o PIRER S BRI AN R RIE

disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: Cokiiniz
REME

2015 2014
—E-AfF —T-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue W as 2,147,344 -
Cost of sales and total expenses SHE AN R B ST (2,045,561) -
Profit for the year N g A 101,783 -
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ RNEZE IR EEE 45,969 -
Current assets MENEE 3,314,071 5,215,972
Non-current assets ERENEE 430,767 41,165
Current liabilities mEN AR (625,068) (2,843,086)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (1,844,273) (1,184,523)
Net cash flow from operating activities — &EERBELZRESREFHE 159,470 -
Net cash flow from investing activities BERDEE RS REFE - -
Net cash flow from financing activities MEGDELAZREREFHE (152,375) -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents & &R & SEEINFEE 7,095 -

o=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt s

31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

40.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 1 December 2014, the Group had entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Onfield International
Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, to
acquire a 100% equity interest in Ease Triumph (“the
Acquisition”). Ease Triumph and its subsidiaries (”Ease
Triumph Group”) are engaged in the development and
investment of properties. On 30 December 2014, the
Acquisition had been completed and approved at the
shareholders’ meeting. Further details of the transaction
are included in note 44(b) to the financial statements.
In the opinion of the directors, the Acquisition can help
to enhance the Group’s growth potential and benefit
the existing shareholders in the long run. The purchase
consideration for the Acquisition had been in the form
of cash of HK$325,881,000, which had been paid on 30
December 2014.

The Group had elected to measure the non-controlling
interests in Ease Triumph Group at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of Ease Triumph Group's
identifiable net assets.

40.

EBE6f
RZZE—NF+=-A—H AEHE
B|A A A 2z [ RM B 2 Ffonfield
International LimitedB2 &I & & i
AR 2100% R A (B S
B - HEREWBAR ([HEEE])
HEMEERERREEBH - R —
F+ZA=1+H  KEFHEETKIE
REAXSESHE EEXINE—F
FEIBE N SRR M E44(b) c EFR
B WESTEEPRESEASENER
BIRREFRAKRREXZ - WHEE1E
# & B (X (8 & 3R ©325,881,000/% 7T -
ER_T-—HF+_A=1tBEXfT-

7 o B I8 HB 4 PR 2 B (90
A B A A L S B H R R R E Y
S IR -



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

REMZE TEERER (F8) BRAF

Annual Report 2015 —ZE — R EFE R

40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

Ease Triumph Group as at the date of acquisition were

as follows:

40.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

EBast (&)

MESERWBERAROABNEERA
B2AFEDT

Fair value
recognised on

acquisition
Uit B BeF T R RR
B AFE
Notes HK$'000
B et FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BE MR B 12 1
Properties under development BEERPME 4,950,000
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE ~ e RE M EIKARTK
other receivables 1,124,076
Prepaid taxes TERTRIE 120,981
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFE 106,595
Due to fellow subsidiaries &R Z K 2 A (123,400)
Due to non-controlling shareholders FERTH B A B2 FEERRAR SR
of subsidiaries (49,734)
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REAR R B RTHER (2,361,837)
Other payables and accruals HAh e 5/ IE R EET B A (37,114)
Customer deposits BERE (1,757,152)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FPEIRITER — ERD
— non-current (665,061)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIES R 35 (217,695)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 1Z2AFEFHERN A # A& EFELEE 1,089,660
Non-controlling interests R (594,557)
495,103
Gain on bargain purchase recognised WA B REREBRE KA
in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (169,222)
Satisfied by cash Be It 325,881

A gain on bargain purchase had been resulted as the

consideration reflected a discount to the reassessed net

asset value of Ease Triumph Group. Reassessed net asset

value discount is one of the common methodologies

used by investors when determining the valuation of real

estate companies or assets.

ARERAEEELEGHEEREN
EOMELTHREBEREBRE NEER
WELEXKNEEZGER  GEHREE
FENERAREERBZEBREEZ—
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31 December 2015 —E—HAF+=-_A=+—H

40.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair value of other receivables as at the date
of acquisition amounted to HK$1,106,000. The
gross contractual amount of other receivables was
HK$1,106,000 and was expected to be collectible.

The Group had incurred transaction costs of
HK$4,757,000 for the Acquisition. These transaction
costs had been expensed and were included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of Ease Triumph Group is as follows:

40.

¥Xatt (&)
HmEWERERRWEBR 2 AFES
1,106,000/ 7 - EfEWIRFNBEE L
+%8/51,106,0008 7T TEHZE LY
ATYLE ©

AEERKRBEECELENRIREAE
4,757,000/ 7T - ZER HN LD HIE
RERAERE YERGKAEBZRAIIE
TRERER -

HWBEBAEEEFENR SR TN
I

HK$'000

FAET

Cash consideration RENE (325,881)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired FIlEHRE KR EE 106,595
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FIANBEEHEEZREREL

included in cash flows from investing RERRESFEMTFE

activities (219,286)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included  ZWAKLEEHELZRERE L

in cash flows from operating activities W22 5 R AR (4,757)

(224,043)

Since the acquisition, there had been no contribution
from Ease Triumph Group to the Group’s revenue and to
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year ended 31 December 2014, the revenue from
continuing operations of the Group and the loss of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 would
have been HK$70,856,000 and HK$104,327,000,
respectively.

WigE  mESEERERASEZ ke
rHEHEZZE-—NF+_A=+—HILF
B2 mFERER -

HEHARBE _T—HF+-_A=1t—
BIEFEZEFOES BE-_T—NF
TZA=+T—ALFEZREBAEER
BREEXEB 2 Wa M AEEEEK D 5
#%70,856,000/8 7T, 52.104,327,000/8 7T, ©
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41.
(a)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13
to the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 10 years. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

41. KEHRNZTH
(a) EBHBEA

AEERBLEMEORHFLEE
REME (WBHRRME13) &
THAR/—E1TF - MOGK—
BIMERKBPHRRES RRTE
REFRTHAEAFHERS -

RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H"
RIEEEFA P 5T 3 2 T A A &
MA - AEEHBEZBHEBEOR
REWHESBEHINNAT

2015
—E—REF

2014
—E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

)
hFi&

After five years

11,908 -

E_EFERF (BREE

19,483 -
9,757 -

41,148 -

As lessee

The Group leases its office premises and a
director’s apartment under non-cancellable
operating lease arrangements with terms ranging
from one to three years.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

EREBAA
AEBERETAIRMELEHEOR
HERERLAEMEREER
B HBMAH—E=F-

(b)

RZFE—RF+ZA=+—H"
BRI T LA T FHR B HE 2 7 A K
ey AEEFERAERHE
HREECHES AR T

2015 2014

—2-5fF —T—mE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Within one year —FR 3,677 2,062
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ZEFRHE (BEER

) 1,367 1,795

5,044 3,857
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42. COMMITMENTS 42. EE
In addition to the operating lease commitments in note Br ESCBfTRE4 2 & A AIESN - K&
41 above, the Group had the following commitments at B S BAAR A AT ARE -
the end of the reporting period:
2015 2014
i —T-MmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: SHENEISE S-S
Establishment of a joint venture (note) — B(SZ& &R R (M) 47,904 50,000
Property development expenditure YIRS 338,402 586,159
386,306 636,159

Note:

On 4 January 2006, Sino-Aviation Investments, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement
(the "JV Agreement”) with AVIC International, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and Chengdu Aircraft Industry (Group)
Corporation Ltd. (“Chengdu Aircraft”), for the establishment
of a joint venture to engage in the research and development,
design and manufacture of parts and components for commercial
aircraft, and provision of related technical services. According to
the JV Agreement, the total registered capital of the joint venture
is RMB100 million (equivalent to approximately HK$120 million),
of which 40%, 15% and 45% respectively, will be contributed
by Sino-Aviation Investments, AVIC International and Chengdu
Aircraft. The JV Agreement is conditional upon (i) the internal
approval obtained by each of the three parties; and (ii) the approval
from the relevant PRC authorities. As at 31 December 2015, the JV
Agreement has not become effective as the conditions stated above
have not been fulfilled.

Bt

RZZETRE—AWB  ARRZ2EREBA
AJSino-Aviation Investmentsf K A R] 2 £ B
BREAMEREKMBRETE (KB) BRE
FERR ([ERE]) sT LA EmE ([AEH
F) UK —REERAT REMARES
BB B - RETREGE - A RIBAURRI R AR
B REBEGEMSE AERRAZEIMELRR
100,000,0007T AR (#8570 #120,000,000/8
7t) » ErSino-Aviation Investments » H fi B B
KR EB R AS D BIEEA0% ~ 15% %45% © &
EHEARFATREERETSER - B1E1)=
T & BESNEE - R>GVESFSERTBEEE
HE -BEZZT—RAF+-A=1T—H HRE
G AR - B ER A B R A R AR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

43. JAREE

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities REEBR - WA FHRERIE L BE
not provided for in the financial statements were as ZHABENT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Guarantee given to banks for housing
loans extended by the banks to the
purchasers of the Group’s properties
for a period from the date of loans

RAREMEZBEFTREE

FEEERMABRITRHEZ
ER - ERUHERE
Bz BREEFES

being granted to the purchasers up to % EEZB AL

the date of issuance of property title

certificates to the purchasers 36,489 56,975
The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and ZERZAFELTER MAEER
the directors consider that in case of default in payments R BEBERERNF BEMEZT
by the purchasers, the net realisable value of the related B FEBEAARBEEEARZER
properties will be sufficient to cover the repayment e A RERAEFMEF - Bt KRN
of the outstanding loan principals together with the BHE-_Z—NhFT+-_A=1T—HILEE
accrued interests and penalties and therefore no 2 BHRERZERECAEE (ZF
provision has been made in the financial statements for —PUF ;&) o

the year ended 31 December 2015 for the guarantees

(2014: Nil).

o=

&

™



hEMZE TEERER (F8) BRAF

/fﬁ-‘? AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

[ 3

Annual Report 2015 —Z— R EF R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt s
31 December 2015 —E—RF+-_A=+—H

44,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions described

elsewhere in these financial statements, the

BB LR 5

BV BBRERZBREZZHIN
RNEBRFERGHETA TS

(a)

Group had the following transactions with related R -
parties during the year:
2015 2014
—EB-EE —
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FAET FET
Interest income on loans to BIEzE NGIE Y
related companies B2 F B A (i) 1,994 1,780
Associates: =N
Interest income on a HAE R RIEITZ
convertible bond issued mRES
by a former associate FE WA (ir) 518 1,036
Interest income on loans M N RR R
to associates B2 B A (ifi) 1,229 717
Fellow subsidiaries: EES YN
Interest expense on loans RKERRHEBARRN
from fellow subsidiaries BR2FE iﬁ (iv) (225,058) -
Management fee paid to S'ZH B ZHEA
a fellow subsidiary HNEES (v) 6,178 -
Interest expenses on loans KA A F) A
from an intermediate BERzMEZ T
holding company (vi) 14,691 -
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(iii)

(vi)

Details of the loans to related companies are set
out in note 24 to the financial statements.

The interest income represented interest income
on the convertible bond issued by AVIC Joy, which
was reclassified to available-for-sale investment
upon deemed disposal during the year. Details of
the convertible bond are set out in note 19(b) to

the financial statements.

Details of the loans to associates are set out in note
17 to the financial statements.

Details of the loans from fellow subsidiaries are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Management fee paid to a fellow subsidiary is
determined between the Group and the fellow

subsidiary.

Details of the loans from an intermediate holding
company are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

Other transaction with related party:

In the prior year, the Group had acquired

Ease Triumph Group from a fellow subsidiary

of the Company at a cash consideration
of HK$325,881,000. Further details of the
transaction are included in note 40 to the

financial statements.

44. BEBAERS (2

(a)

(%)
Hret

(i) FEIE R B RENE R Z F15
N WRMTE24

(i) % FB A Ty 38 5 A A B
T2 Al ES (FRARRER
ERENOEEIHEENE
H) ZFBWA - AR ESZ
FHERRFBIEME190b)

(iif) B & R BRENE R Z FI5
NP WRMTE17 -

(iv) RERZMBARNERZF
BRI IRERMEES

(v) XNGEREAMNBARNERE
DHAEERERANEBARE
ol

(vi) REAFHEZERARNERZF
TBE B IRERMIEES0

SR ETZEMR S

BAFE  AEEEURSRE
325,881,000 L ¢ &K A & 2 [
EMBRRIWBEBHRESE - %X
S — S BEHN Y EREM
740 °

o=
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44,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 44. BABAR S (&
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: () B 2 REEER

() Details of the Group’s loans to associates (i) REBE R E QR RN
are disclosed in note 17 to the financial B F BRI B IRERHK
statements. FE17H#EEE o

(i) Details of the Group's loans to related (ii) NEB R AR R IRED
companies are disclosed in note 24 to the BERZH BRI BREM
financial statements. 241 -

(i)  Details of the Group's balances with non- (i) AEBEHENBARZIEE
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries M AR 3R 2 4k 2 SFIE N B
are disclosed in note 29 to the financial TEIRFMIFE298 55 -
statements.

(iv)  Details of the Group’s balances with an (iv) ANEFEAPEERRFZ
intermediate holding company are disclosed ER BRI B REM
in note 30 to the financial statements. 30 -

(v) Details of the Group’s balances with fellow (v) AEBHRRMBRARZ
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 31 to the ER 2 BN IEERERMN
financial statements. FE3THEEE -

(vi)  Details of terms of the convertible bonds iy R-ZE—WNFE+-_A=+
issued by an associate as at 31 December —HB EBERRETZA
2014 are disclosed in note 19(b) to the TR EH 2 IR EF BRI
financial statements. TEHRMI T 19(b) I FE -

(d)  Compensation of key management personnel of (d) AEBEBREEAS CHRHN

the Group:

2015 2014
—E-1F —ZE—E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT

Short term employee benefits EHE ST 3,262 11,565

Post-employment benefits ER®EBER 183 311

Total compensation paid to key THEREEAB Y

management personnel RN BER 3,445 11,876

Further details of directors’

The related party transaction in respect of item (b) above
also constitutes a connected transaction as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

ERESHEe 2 E—THFBIN
BT HRR MY AE8 o

7

BRI L(0)BZ BT R 5 MEK L™
BRAIFI14AAEPTER ZBIER S ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%
31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-_A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. @I ESDHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RFERR  SEF M ITARTE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N
period are as follows:
2015
—E-HE
Financial assets
MKEE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss - Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
BAYE
FABRZ
PBBEE - AftHER
HEEE ERREREN HBEE L
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Loan to associates mEEDRIRENER - 10,180 - 10,180
Available-for-sale investments A ENRE - - 400,421 400,421
Derivative financial instruments TR T A 119,896 = = 119,896
Trade and bills receivables [EWE SERRER - 177,078 - 177,078
Due from fellow subsidiaries U EESEIND = 49,194 = 49,194
Loans to related companies R D AR E T = 29,206 = 29,206
Due from non-controlling RIS BN B 2 JEE iR
shareholder of a subsidiary xR - 323 - 323
Financial assets included in SABARE - ZE R
prepayments, deposits and Hh YRR TR
other receivables AR = 45,064 = 45,064
Equity investment at fair value BROTEFABREZ
through profit or loss BRARE 285,713 - - 285,713
Pledged time deposits [RErigti il - 359 - 359
Cash and cash equivalents BekiRe® - 473,330 - 473,330
405,609 784,734 400,421 1,590,764

o™

™
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. €RMIEDE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEER - SEA eI AREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting W (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

2015 (continued)
20155 (&)

Financial liabilities

g =R

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBHRAE
SR
p S =R
HK$'000
FET
Due to an intermediate holding company FEA Hp BEHERR A R 14,164
Due to fellow subsidiaries NI =N 4

Due to non-controlling shareholders FERTH B A B2 FEEARAR SR
of subsidiaries 64,301
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REAR R B RTHER 1,864,671
Trade and bills payables NS SRR RER 92,358
Other payables and accruals E i fE T R IE R FERH B A 31,892
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRRITER 37,964
Loans from an intermediate holding company R &R EIER A BN E K 509,581

2,614,935
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. SRTIASE (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RE|ERAR SEMNzeMIAREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting W (&)
period are as follows: (continued)
2014
—B-—m&
Financial assets
MBEE
Financial
assets at fair
value through Available-
profit or loss - Loans and for-sale
held for trading receivables  financial assets Total
BRFE
FABRL
NHEE - A HER
HIEEE  EFRREUER HHEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Available-for-sale investments AHRHENEE - - 172,842 172,842
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 150,870 - - 150,870
Trade and bills receivables EWEFRTRER - 19,379 - 19,379
Loans to related companies A RRENER - 38,500 - 38,500
Financial assets included in FABENKE Bk
prepayments, deposits and H U BR F
other receivables NBEE - 71,070 - 71,070
Equity investment at fair value BRATEFABREY
through profit or loss RAZE 166,797 - - 166,797
Time deposit with original DEERIEAEA
maturity of more than three —EAZEBEX
months when acquired - 155,588 - 155,588
Pledged time deposits EERBTEHER - 375 - 375
Cash and cash equivalents BehES2%E - 1,093,361 - 1,093,361
317,667 1,378,273 172,842 1,868,782

o=
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45,
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

2014 (continued)

ERTRIE (&)

RMEPR SENze T AR@E
R (48)

ZE-IEF (F)
Financial liabilities
MikaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
L EESHRCR
HIBRAY
MBEaRE
HK$'000
FAET
Due to fellow subsidiaries JE AT [R) 2B B 2 ] 123,400
Due to non-controlling shareholders JEASTFT BB A B) 2 FEFE AR AR 3R
of subsidiaries 49,734
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRKBATNER 2,361,837
Trade and bills payables BB SRR RER 8,495
Other payables and accruals H b S SR IE R FERT B A 46,420
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITER 704,686

3,294,572
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46.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%
31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-_A=+—H

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s

financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

as follows:

EMTACZATVERLAFESER

I E

AEEERTAZEEELRATE (B
FEEEATFESEREERIN) &I

mF -

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE DNEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1F —E-F —E-ERF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK3$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets BEEE
Trade receivable (non-current  EWE SEER (FER
portion) BEm) 21,628 - 19,356 -
Due from a fellow subsidiary ~ JEU R R B2 7]
(non-current portion) (GEREEHR) 3,178 - 3,022 -
Loans to associates EEENGIE L3
B 10,180 - 10,373 -
Loans to related companies  [AIBEHE A BHR ALY
(non-current portion) B3 GERD
05) 11,976 18,750 12,065 18,788
Available-for-sale investments ]t EMIRE 400,421 172,842 400,421 172,842
Equity investment at fair value & AF(EH AR
through profit or loss ZRARIE 285,713 166,797 285,713 166,797
Derivative financial instruments $T4££ 8T & 119,896 150,870 119,896 150,870
852,992 509,259 850,846 509,297
Financial liabilities HBEE
Loans from a fellow subsidiary 3 & R & B2 A)
(non-current portion) MER GERE
2$15) 1,658,683 258,750 1,791,586 249,831
Interest-bearing bank SHESRITER GER
borrowings (non-current 2E1n)
portion) - 665,061 - 605,280
Loans from an intermediate 3 & F EHEA A A
holding company BB R 509,581 - 607,026 -
2,168,264 923,811 2,398,612 855,111

o™
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46.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
and bills receivables, balances with fellow subsidiaries
(current portion), an intermediate holding company,
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and related
companies (current portion), financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, time
deposit with original maturity of more than three months
when acquired, pledged time deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings (current
portion) approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the chief
financial officer is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer and then
reported to the chief executive officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

46.

EMTACZATFERAFESER
HE (&)

BEEEFEERBS  BRRESEARE
B -E2HRERAMNBAR (RBEFD) -+
B AR - MBARZIEEBRARR &
BB AR ORBE D) 28 stATR
MHE e REORUERNYHE
E DEERIPEBER=@AZFEH
TR BEEAEHER  RekReF
B BNEZEARRE  EMEMNK
BENETER ARG ERITEROR
HE) cAFERESA ZREEM
o IERARZEFTLARNEHADES -

MR BREREZASE 2 MHMa
AETERTARAVEAEZHRRRLE
FFeRBEREAH  BHIAMAITE
BTANEEZHYETHETEADN
22 - MEAVBAERR N
e BMHRE TITRAS - AEBER
EREGFERRN P BN FE I 5w
HEZZEGETHW

BBEERBBEZAFEFABRE (M
FREFBFRIE) XHETRNEMNR
SRAEMTAZSBEA °

PEET AP ER

.
o

SEATITALR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of loans
to related companies, loans from a fellow subsidiary,
interest-bearing bank borrowings and loans from an
intermediate holding company have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for loans from a fellow subsidiary,
interest-bearing bank borrowings and loans from an
intermediate holding company as at 31 December 2015
was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments, including PMH Derivatives and AVIC Joy
Derivative, have been estimated using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are supported by
observable market prices or rates. The directors believe
that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with various counterparties. Derivative financial
instruments were measured using valuation models
which incorporate various market observable inputs
including the credit quality of counterparties and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of derivative
financial instruments were the same as their fair values.
As at 31 December 2015, the marked to market value
of the above derivative asset position was net of a
credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative
counterparty default risk.

46.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

SRMIAEZAFERAFESR
FE (&)

MEAARIRENER - RERRWES
NAEIMER - s BRITER KR E+RE
ERATNERNERBIT O A TE
DIREBBEUGK EERBRFHF
v TARTZMENMBHARRRE
mEE R-_T—AF+-_A=1+-—
B AEBEEAFRERREHBARNE
FoRBRRITEREKEFEER AR
WEFHTBAORBETEATERK o

ERRAKRE 2 R FETIARMRHEE
RER - FEMAHLENRERITE
ERMITA(BERXTEZERITETIAR
ERERITETR) ZRAFETAGE
R E - R AHERMRAZ RRE
BrRiBiEmERLRERXT -  EFR
B A MBI R SR 2B A BB
P EZ R FEARE M2 S 4R
BHEERANCHZATERBEES B
BE  RHmEMK - HEER/RE -

AEBRZEIZHALTESRHTA
B -TEERMIARBERZEMS
AEREABBNGERIETTE
BREXZITNEELERFERHR - 17
AeRIANKREESFNEATE - R
“E-RF+ZA=+—H  b#fTE
BERANMEENKREANTETIARS
TERAORBMEENEEMGHERE -
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46.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. £RITEZAFTEREAFEESH

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) HE (&)

Fair value hierarchy ATEERHE

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRINTAEESHIAZ ATHEFE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: o

Assets measured at fair value:

U FETFEZEE :
Fair value measurement using
FERAUNTEEETLOTENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBMS EXTEHE EAFTUEBER
HRE wARE BARE
(F—%) (FZ8) (F=8) Sy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-FE+=A
=t+—H
Available-for-sale investments: At HEMNEE -
Equity investments BAREE 283,688 = = 283,688
Debt investments BEBERE 2,290 114,443 - 116,733
Equity investment at fair value 1R A F(Ezt A2
through profit or loss BARE 285,713 - = 285,713
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 4T E - 119,896 - 119,896
571,691 234,339 - 806,030
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z-MmE+=A
=+-—H
Available-for-sale investments: At HHERIRE -
Debt investments BERIEE 5,070 167,772 - 172,842
Equity investment at fair value  ZAFEFAEZZ
through profit or loss A E 166,797 - - 166,797
Derivative financial instruments {7448 T A - 150,870 - 150,870
171,867 318,642 - 490,509
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured RZEBE-—RFR-ZZT-—MOF+-A=+
at fair value as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. —B > AEBVETMIZAFEFEZ
HEEE -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value TN BBEERMBABZE —HK
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no FoHMZEHEERRATETE  NE
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets EAREBHE=-"R (ZZT—MOF : &) -

and financial liabilities (2014 Nil).
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

EMTAZATVERLAFESER

HE (&)
DFESRHE (&)

TRINRAEBERTAEZ AFEFE

E& (8

ERELFEZEE
Fair value measurement using
FERAUATSEETATLEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERHS EAAEE EAFUEE
HIRE BARE BARE
(B—-4) (B=&) (F=#) a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-H%F+=A
=+—-H
Trade receivable (non-current  EWE SR
portion) (GERBEHR) - 19,356 - 19,356
Due from a fellow subsidiary e R ZH B AT
(non-current portion) (FEREIHH) - 3,022 = 3,022
Loans to associates B & A AR LAY
B - 10,373 - 10,373
Loans to related companies Bl k!
(non-current portion) EX GEREH M) = 12,065 = 12,065
- 44,816 - 44,816
As at 31 December 2014 R-BE-NE+=A
=t+-A
Loans to related companies R B R A B IR
(non-current portion) B3 GERBEHMm) - 18,788 - 18,788
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46.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

ERELAFEZELE -

EMTACZATFERAFESER

HE (&)
DNRPESEREE (&)

TRIITAEESRTAZ AVENE

E& (8

Fair value measurement using

ERANTERETOFEFE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBTE BEATEE EATTEE
HsRE BAHE BWABE
(B-%) (F=#) (£=8) EH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FET FET
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-HE+=A
=+—-H
Loans from a fellow subsidiary R & R ZMH B2 E]&
(non-current portion) R GERBE M) - 1,791,586 - 1,791,586
Loans from an intermediate KB P REER AR
holding company 8% - 607,026 - 607,026
- 2,398,612 - 2,398,612
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE-NE+=A
=+—-H
Loans from a fellow subsidiary & & R & B 2 &E)
(non-current portion) ER GERBHH) - 249,831 - 249,831
Interest-bearing bank FFEIRITER
borrowings (non-current (FERBE D)
portion) - 605,280 - 605,280
- 855,111 - 855,111
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47.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and
short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities, such as trade and bills receivables and
trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency exposures primarily arise
from certain sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
In view of the fact that the Group tries to match its
assets and liabilities with the same currency, the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest rate risk because
the Group’s interest-bearing debts, including loans from
fellow subsidiaries and an intermediate holding company
and interest-bearing bank borrowings, are arranged on a
fixed rate basis.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

47.

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H
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47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, time deposit
with original maturity of more than three months,
pledged time deposits, available-for-sale investments,
derivative financial instruments, deposits and other
receivables, an amount due from non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, and loans to associates
and related companies, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade and bills receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and loans from fellow subsidiaries and an
intermediate holding company. The Group’s policy is to
minimise borrowings.

47.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. BHH¥EREEBEEZREE (£)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REMERR (2)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities RIWEBRR AREEEREFTAERM
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the BNRZUBBEINRERNT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2015
—Z-1f
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years Total
=ZEANL
ROR
REXE DPR={EA +=fEA —Z1F &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FHET FET
Due to an intermediate JERT R 22 7
holding company 14,164 - - - 14,164
Due to fellow subsidiaries [ENRZNE AR 4 - - - 4
Due to non-controlling FERTHI B A R 2 FFHERR
shareholders of subsidiaries & 64,301 - - - 64,301
Loans from fellow subsidiaries 7 & [ Z B 2 218)
BR - 46,617 335,539 1,807,322 2,189,478
Trade and bills payables EAESRINTE - 84,345 8,013 - 92,358
Financial liabilities included in 5+ A E 40 & 7008 M fE =t
other payables and accruals ~ BRHEFARE - 31,892 - - 31,892
Interest-bearing bank TERERTER
borrowings - 609 39,238 - 39,847
Loans from an intermediate 7B R RFEIR A 71
holding company B - 12,739 38219 700,674 751,632
Guarantee given to banks for BIAREEME 7 BRER
housing loans extended by ~ ZEEEHMFARITIR
the banks to the purchasers — #t 7 #E(R - BREAE
of the Group's properties XEEFZAREER
for a period from the date ~ EEWEEEZ AL
of loans being granted to
the purchasers up to the date
of issuance of property title
certificates to the purchasers 36,489 - - - 36,489
114,958 176,202 421,009 2,507,996 3,220,165
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47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

(continued)

47. HERAREEEEREE (£)

REBMERE (&)

RBERKR  REBERDATAERRS
BNz BaEIHBERNT - (&)

2014
—T-mF
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3months 12 months  1-5 years Total
“EANRE
RAR
RERE PR=EA =@ A —ZhF At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET FET FET
Due to fellow subsidiaries [ENRZN B 2R 123,400 - - - 123,400
Due to non-controlling ENHBAR Rk
shareholders of subsidiaries  BX& 49,734 - - - 49,734
Loans from fellow subsidiaries R &R Z KB A FNEH - 526,671 1,760,374 278,250 2,565,295
Trade and bills payables ERESERRER - 5,636 2,859 - 8,495
Financial liabilities included in &t A EAl e (4 2008 J& JE 5T
other payables and accruals ~ BRHGKERE - 46,420 - - 46,420
Interest-bearing bank TERAER
borrowings - 15,344 68,801 701,448 785,593
Guarantee given to banks for FAEENE 7 BRER
housing loans extended by ~ ZEEEFKMFARITIE
the banks to the purchasers ~ #tZ1E(R - EREIALE
of the Group's properties FEEFN/AREER
for a period from the date ~ BEWEREEZ AL
of loans being granted to
the purchasers up to the
issuance of property title
certificates to the purchasers 56,975 - - - 56,975
230,109 594,071 1,832,034 979,698 3,635,912




AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfIZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

Annual Report 2015 —ZE — R EFE R

47.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. HMEEBREEEEZRBEER (£)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk % 2 = B
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of 15 185 [, Bz B B % 32 46 UK T K2 (B 51 78 25
financial instruments decrease as a result of changes in BEZFHMFEHITERFERENR
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual %o NZE—RAF+ZA=1+—H =&
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk EBEAZDERBEERNIRE (MiF27)
arising from a listed equity investment classified as Z TR EMRES ZRERR - &
trading equity investment (note 27) as at 31 December SEEMRAIEE T RERM LT - I
2015. The Group’s listed equity investment is listed on TR E RS TEMNE -
the Stock Exchange and is valued at quoted market price
at the end of the reporting period.
The market equity index for the following stock FRNRBEIRERRZ S BRTR TS
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading BERXGMERERBRENFAZ
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and BRRsEIEHAT
its respective highest and lowest points during the year
was as follows:
31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2015 2015 2014 2014
—B-E% &/ keSS &/
t=A=t+-AH Z%2-5% +-A=t-H “Z-|F
Hong Kong BE - BEEY
- Hang Seng Index 21,914  21,970/21,864 23,605  25,318/21,182

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 1% change in the fair values of the listed equity
investments and the underlying equity investments
of the derivative financial instruments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.

TREY  EFAEMATERZERT
BETHRBEBEZENOGRET  ERRE
HARETRARERTESHBMIAZME
FARAKREZRAE  EATFESHRE
1% HBREE o
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. BB EAMEEEERKE (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued) RERE (&)
Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease) Increase/
of financial in profit (decrease)
instruments before tax in equity*
¢RMIAZ Bt AR REmEm,
REE #m,/ h) (R2) *
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000
& & FET
2015 —E-EHF
Investment listed in Hong Kong ~ REB LM 2RE
— Available-for-sale investment ~ — AJftHERE 2,837/
283,688 = (2,837)
- Equity investment at fair —BAFEFABRZZ 2,857/
value through profit or loss A E 285,713 (2,857) -
PMH Derivatives ATEZERITETR 1,130/
90,444 (1,130) -
AVIC Joy Derivative ERERITEIA 342/
29,452 (3) -
2014 —E-mF
Investment listed in Hong Kong REE Tz E
- Equity investment at fair — NP EFAERZZ 1,668/
value through profit or loss AR E 166,797 (1,668) -
PMH Derivatives ATEZERITETA 2,720/
125,373 (1,759) -
AVIC Joy Derivative ERERITETA 722/
25,497 (731) -
* Excluding retained profits * TEEBIEHT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} & 38 3% ff 5%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. Except for the composition of debt in the
calculation of gearing ratio, no changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is the interest-bearing debts divided by
equity attributable to owners of the parent plus the
interest-bearing debts,. Interest-bearing debts include
loans from fellow subsidiaries, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and loans from an intermediate holding
company.

47.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods

were as follows:

EXER (&)
BERRZERBERMT

BHEREZEEREREE (&)

2015 2014
—E-REF —E—E
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RAERRKEBRRMNER 1,864,671 2,361,837
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEIRITER 37,964 704,686
Loans from an intermediate KA EERARINER
holding company 509,581 -
Interest-bearing debts TEER 2,412,216 3,066,523
Equity attributable to owners BRBIMAEEGER
of the parent 2,737,534 2,783,371
Equity attributable to owners BRRIMBEEIGER
of the parent plus the EtEE®
interest-bearing debts 5,149,750 5,849,894
Gearing ratio BEARBEXR 47% 52%
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48.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 48.

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H

NS e

BRARRRARRE RO BEARERD

ERBIINT :

2015 2014
—E-EfF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEE 24,411 25,548
Investments in subsidiaries MEARZIRE 849,550 870,813
Available-for-sale investment AIHEENKRE - 2,680
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 873,961 899,041
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE ~ e RHEAM
receivables FEUBR X 4,016 8,686
Due from a subsidiary FE UL BT B A &) 954 926
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFEAE 320,589 370,630
Total current assets MENEEMBE 325,559 380,242
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HiE B R ERTE A 3,302 16,057
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERFE 322,257 364,185
Net assets BESE 1,196,218 1,263,226
EQUITY R
Issued capital BEITRA 551,959 551,959
Reserves i 644,259 711,267
Total equity HEmBE 1,196,218 1,263,226
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 48.
THE COMPANY (continued)

RRRFBMRRER (&)

Note: Bt
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RRBREFERRMAT
Share premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
R4 E R BB BFaA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT FETT
At 1 January 2014 RZE—mOE—H—H 164,477 5,243 146,681 316,401
Total comprehensive income NEZPEWZLTE
for the year - - (49,737) (49,737)
Issue of shares (note 36) BT (A13136) 450,000 - - 450,000
Share issue expense (note 36)  ZERRER (H1:136) (5,397) - - (5,397)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE—ME+=A
1 January 2015 =+—HK
“E-A¥—A—H 609,080 5,243 96,944 711,267
Total comprehensive income AEZMWEEEE
for the year - - (67,008) (67,008)
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE—AF+=A
=+—H 609,080 5,243 29,936 644,259

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the consolidated net asset value of Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.)
Limited on 20 November 1991, when its entire issued share capital
was acquired by the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation,
over the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
consideration for such acquisition, net of accumulated losses of
the Company set off in the prior years. Under the Companies Act
of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

The Company’s share premium account of HK$609,080,000 (2014:
HK$609,080,000) as at 31 December 2015 may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

49. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  49.

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2016.

RARZHBABRBEALARRBEEBRTHE
R —Nh—F+— A=+ BE AFar East
Aluminium (B.V.l.) Limited2® 308 877X AR EF
Far East Aluminium (B.V.l) LimitedZZ& & E
SFEBBAARMERKEREMEITZRNEE
2R WEHBRRBEFERBEZAATRE
B - RIBARERAFE—NN— ARFZH
ABHREETERTAIHS IR TERE o

ERAR-ZE—AF+-A=+—AZROHE
#:609,080,000/8 7T (=% — P4 : 609,080,000
BT A ABRABRIT A ©

M| R 2

BBHRERENR T R"F=ZA-1+HWA
REFSHERTETE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES ¥ ¥ & ¥
31 December 2015 —E—RF+_-_A=+—H

Investment properties

REYWH
Attributable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
b B Ay HE TEEELER
3/F to 13/F, Phase A Office Medium term 52.08%
The International Square WAE A
Shahekou District
Dalian City
Liaoning Province
The PRC
REE SR AET AR
HR i B R 45
AB=Z+=1&
Properties under development/Properties for sale
REPYE BEHEZEZRYE
Attributable
Stage of Expected interest
Location Use Site area Gross floor area  completion completion date  of the Group
e Jif3 WEEE BRLEEE IRRRER  fHRIAH REEEGER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(F7AK) (FHAK)
The International Square Commercial/ 46,935 435,609 Partly completed  December 2018 52.08%
Shahekou District residential and partly workin Z£—/\F+=H
Dalian City EYAiE: progress
Liaoning Province BRTRIR BN
The PRC TR
MEREEAET
PR
PHERES
Liangjiangxin District Commercial/ 375,252 401,514 Work in progress  December 2018 99%
Chongging City residential TR “E-\F+ZA
The PRC wE/E%

EEETMLHE
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY fHF & E

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and ZAEEBERAFEMBFEFENEEREE A&
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial ~ FIEFEMER BT - ThiEsk B B HIZE & F
years, as extracted from the published audited financial #ZEBHREX WO /EEEEY| JHHLE - it
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set ZEIWIEKEZIFHREROIMD -

out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-HA=1+-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-1F —T-NF —T-=F <Z-——F ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS £
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELEER
Revenue g 2,198,590 70,856 47,979 87,328 -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AT A 191,314 6,438 477,687 422,613 432,014
Income tax expense FTERiMA Y (107,854) (491) (81,012) (61,618)  (111,191)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM BELEEK Y
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RERFI 83,460 5,947 396,675 360,995 320,823

DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEEEHR

Profit for the year from a RESIHS=E i

discontinued operation NEFH - - - - 152,766
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RERF 83,460 5,947 396,675 360,995 473,589
Attributable to: TH AL :

Owners of the parent BRAMEE 41,820 27,266 397,242 359,651 467,519

Non-controlling interests RS 41,640 (21,319) (567) 1,344 6,070

83,460 5,947 396,675 360,995 473,589

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND 5E 86K

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  FE 1Bz
Total assets EEBE 6,417,546 8,680,613 2,348,352 2,086,453 2,551,850
Total liabilities BERE (3,085,888) (5,318,852)  (118,040)  (128,254)  (396,770)
Non-controlling interests e (594,124)  (578,390) (5,082) (5,582) (4,173)

2,737,534 2,783,371 2,225,230 1,952,617 2,150,907
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DIRECTORS

Wu Guangquan (Chairman)

Pan Linwu (Deputy Chairman)

Lai Weixuan

Xu Hongge (Chief Executive Officer)
Xiao Nan

Chow Wai Kam*

Chu Yu Lin, David**

Li Ka Fai, David**

Li Zhaoxi**
* Non-executive Director
** Independent Non-executive Directors

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chu Yu Lin, David (Chairman)
Li Ka Fai, David
Li Zhaoxi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chu Yu Lin, David (Chairman)
Wu Guangquan
Li Ka Fai, David

COMPANY SECRETARY

Tsui Choi Yee, Connie

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda

CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEHR

E=

Rk (£5E)
BAR (B/E/E)
RS

TR (7TBCAREL)
& e~

R~
FREE**
FIRER**

* HHITEF

o BUHFHTES
BREEY
KRB (/)
FRE

kR
FHzERe
RNEE (L)
SR

FRE

DRWE

BRAR

EERT

BB LSELRITARAF
B

2K G BB AT

AMMER

Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DREER
HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS
Principal registrars

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

Hong Kong registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.avic.com.hk

STOCK CODE
232

AMEENETREX MR
BEESEEISH

F—Hh N 15EBE

RDBFETE
FRRMDBFETE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

EEROBERRE
BEARRBAZTLARAA
BEBETERFRER1835R
AP L1T7E1712-1716F
#uh

www.avic.com.hk

BRAD SR

232
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